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Tfed SFAATT TR WeaT &I MAHT AR g Mg | 9 09 A1 fawaeandy snfds afg ) <0
GieTad T ROIR AT ¥.R FFAea @A ATHH TRTH, |

ARIET AFTHT (IMF) &1 faea i aRgsT (WEO) & S99 039 # &y wfewr 3fa
AAFEEH! ATAF TEATTAEEAT A9 foera ARG | FIAS-9R T favd AAqeaA T Wbl Iiase
THTEETE GERHN HH T3 AT (i @dg | FIHS-9% T GOl SR Iead Adeaqaen
HUH AAPeTH AMUF TAIee T Ble AATAFT g1 OEAT §, 99 I a9k
HACTTLAT WTHT AAFEE I AHAN AAHTEAT AHT AAFEET A¥h T HITS 9% T FHAT
eI WEATHT MRFaR Gfgal FIRU Hier TR qraar TRIedT S | Aot a9 Ifg fava
HITTAT ATCATAT TIAT Yk or@x Waprer qfg faeak e g e gt g | qard
YTl AfeTaeITH Bl HIESA FURAT FANGH! (MR WA TRIET Whis, |

WIh ToE WY fayd qdET WA (UNWTO) &t faftia IAT g ke fawa qdfe &
ThaeHT TafafEs ¥ GFErArd YT favd qded saiHex (World Tourism Barometer) @t
Jrqaee ATER FIAS-9% F HETHRIET FRU THEd T ATATHT AEUH Faavaadl FRT q
0] F T Mg A GEAE! ATAHT TIEF ANTHA X FIAS-9R [® GIHAT Ifeeda T 99
ROR W HEl FAR TAATHT c¥ FIGd I FF 00 AT &Y Jiaerasr v § | A=aRingd
THEAHT ETTAT AR FATTIU FTAT T G J0R0 AT AW TR ATCATRI TTAT 03 wfereraraer
WA gewl |
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ETARTA ATATHAT 811 T STANTHAAT TRTAT TAT IR &TTAT FaveaT Al NR1ae A e, et
AARET ATTHAAT @9 0% F qfedr Ii= AledTdT G 09 F FHIH AATadl qaardr Y
giaerae fRrae St | aaET Thed ATTHAET 9 qEaeaT S|l RREe (-oy gfer) s s
T iy WeT I (53 Fiawra) T ARSHT (-5 Fiawa) & RREe et | Seafea eedt qoar
FARETAT Bfe FH (VR Fiqera) J@HAT |

TAET SR UK TAHT TR Avh I A= IRauerrg | Ferarie! MR=ararst #R 91
0% AT THEHFEEH! ¥ JHUH FTEAT X &THATHT 8T ATS AT &7 TRAR fqaia faemAT sy
TERe®! PRI TIEA JUNEAg TqA A= (G0 Th gDl ehie | G 09 &1 | Algarr
HTH AT AT 1A T FIAE-R & 7T ARA7EEE MU T FFARIET ATAT I FHITAT
TMETH Fiqavyg MIraR TTAT H1aH @H © | 99 (a9 g 8 RESHT Avaike e
AT 99 AR 09T PR AR ws |

e TAAETHT TR FTawaes el RIS Y€ T N JvaRied qde Saar aaed
FIRH T IGTHT AT JTHREEHT ey Faearar 5@ Y quaig | dearited Tde faeam
Steeget g, aufr quRET FRaes RN FASR, AGAT T ANRET G | IS -9 FTEEH Ieal
Aaredr TR Ag@ faeara RN WEFATE AT I THEAAT TAAHCHE SIEEE T AT T
ATIRT TR T |

Jad, WY FARAAE FOR T FATGTHT SATSTH Y G FCH TAEFETRT AT
giaaraars e gear TR T FHS-9 F GIIwr FHTIATs fefied Areaware yaeTHT warsT
TAMIT ATFARE ATATHT TN T FRETA A AT TTCAEEHT; @ T W AAGEAT AT
STAEEHT R UR EITH G |

¥ R0RY AT AATER AU Fhg R TR @A ATAN TRUHG, TAF 00 AT 9.8 It
Rrae susr fET | AU ERER, AT AATAdd TR IRET 089 /3095 F AUTAHRT ATTIE
FHETI FAR ATART FA YT I<AEA (GDP) T AT THH TATTAT L& TR RS TG0
g TEIU TRTHIG, | ATAH a6 000 /3005 FT Aecd TFAHT THY AU FAFFET TralToTw
TZHT BT | ATt AT TS HITHE-9% o Jee@ g TTAT FER TP, | TYAT T G AwaT o7
TATT &1 TdE X ATl GFaedl SUNT WP, TGS AT oATAETATS, [RPS, ATTA KD
ATEEAT AT GAAT TRET T T THT AUF qGATE Je@A T TTAT TS FH TRHEG, |
I TAETT 000 /3005 FTAR, HETHII-IRT ATHF FFHed AR I THAATS A TETS
ETE |

R0V9/00 FN ATTHF FALTW FrTagad G 00 HT ITHRART HEAHT &9 TrAae qhg HTHHAT
FrRIMET HGT ®W (IMF) &1 AU FAR G 0% AT a@F ¥} FOeraqdr sie Jeao
TR | [ q1g, TIRTF SATIR, TR Feq@d, T 91 Aiie TRgeeee fde feaarsr
ATRT TR LTS | FaIRaet THUT quT ST ST WUt FoTeE AHTaeahl R A ATTH
TYAT TS AT T WeaT A} WRTaE e FHETr g TEw IR |

T R09R AT FHT R ATEG U4eH AT PATTTHAT FITTS-9% FT HETHIIRT FHRUT I 00 AT
fRrEe g R @@ 1 ewRAT T g7 qUat o @ J09R N AT 59 FiaRrae B9 Er |
FPIRIATATERE  (FITHS-9R) FETHIA T SvQraearedl dre Tq A% audl FTqAT aledsdl q97
AT Tataiaese TRUTHAT G2 el AGUERT T | FFIA Tq@ TR F ATecbeb! & HATRT
9 FIE 0 A ¥R FR TUATH TAFHT T a5 G HIET IR FAS ¥R AE 33 T9R TR T |
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T ATET 33.5% TIORTT FST AFIA EH JATTHT Td qWHT BIST AFIUAAT (&89 Frerera /00
TEAT | FFAAIA A AMIF AT A % FAE ¥0 AT@ R TAR AT TRBHAT T a9 ¥Y FAS
3] M@ RV FAR AT AEET TRFT T | Aol ATTF TRl BT AT F4@Ts (Room Occupancy)
R,055 WH TATHT FAET AMIF a0 00 /85 (R0R0/39) AT {93 &t | Fiaarer sfwd
ITEF T (Average Daily Rate ) ATTI® T 065 /09 (09 /R0) FI ¥. & 903 I&ehT TAIHT FTHETT
w08V /95 (R0R0/RY) AT FHW IRIN% T FRTEE ATE Y,5%% FEN @@ | TR @,
AT T T J06%/0VY (R09] /30) FT FNST ATFT F. 3| FIT 3 ATG YO FAR FAATH
JEATHT AOAET ATF STHAT FSTH AFIHT FRTEE A8 %A €. 4 FAS ¥ q@ 30 §IR
gt fafra g7 T

T} T, AFT G SIS FST (RevPAR) ¥ 3RcY ATE WX WIHET ATdF THAT €. Q50 HT
T G | A GIT AT I TG TR AEEAT T AAF TR €, 53 FAS ¥Y a6 90
EWR o AT FIHETT APE T 086 /08 (R030/]9) AT Y&V Fiqeraest RRmEe org <. 3%
FAS © @ {0 EAR &F MTHN T | FR TSB! G FATHT AfTedl ATTHE THAT §.43 gfereras
Tl frr s wfveTr anfie 9 088 /9% (R0R0/39) AT G AIFAH ATH F |

qqTAH! Uledl € (LEED) THINIG &RA Eleelhl €UHT (el AUTa el &ldd dledl d€aug
RrfoReT FaTaaT 9 FRATATERE (FITE-9%) B HETHRI T AT IRFREIRT FRMSUH! QTeaTdT
FEITATAIHT RV T THF THAT SR TP YR FRT ETH ST ATGRUNT QAR T THTaeears
I T ATEEE | A AT FAR A RS9 B EHAT GIE ASADT FAGTITIAAT FI:
IR W AT T il Aed Q. HATRT HA Ao T [EArd TREdH (qdt | geadwt
TSR THY SATIRATS (MATedl FIAS-9 F HETHRIH! AHATH IR3 ATST [QHeSHT sATaaTa®

URGYAET ATRSHE FASH T FHXTAT STHT ATATETET Y |
yiqaeer fafemr = snfies Tt ST geuie T wirerer gheew

A ATMYF TH 005 /B FF 00z HIF 3 TA FFAHI FTHAT T T T ATIE THH Qel
ATAHN ¥ FAE IR TG VO FAR TIATH! TAATHT HA § FBAS L AT@ TIAT ATFA W G | T
WWQOGC Waqwmm(RoomOccupancy) NS WWWE“%WW
Ger AT 0.9 IZH AT | EedA®r Jia BT ﬁww (Average Room Rate (ARR) ) ¥ I
YT HIST ATFRTAT (Revenue Per Available Room (RevPAR)) AR ¥, LRI T %, 5Ty T F S Tq
AT aept WIET ATEAT HHI: T, VY OR T VVONR TReh PIET | HITHE-R HT HETHIT AT e
FEETH I AFATH g3 CH FRO AT ATTAF TR B AT g g ATET TRTHT G |
FIME 9% FIRATATRT HETHRS fayd dfaeadr TR @R Iy | TR =0T, 8% orEt
THE AeIaeITesd ¥ 030 AT ATH! FHA EET ICIE (GDP) T FHFRAAT . TR THATSHS
T FAT RTH RaY | a7 T ufed § Y.y IRTeraRl B Eed 9edTes (GDP) AT HTeT
T FXTATS TTATHT TRUH el | J9eTe §9R SR & YET IqET (GDP) TR AT ¥4
greTae o FRrae g fauar R

¥ R0%Y F H AEATHT FHRIT AMAF F@ART I fq@r@ §T7 (Organization for Economic
Cooperation and Development (OECD)) &t LCRIES gtqas® OECD Economic Outlook & T RO
F fEATRE I T GORS ATTF IRGHAT AAR=aar F1aH Tog, AR TR REE, |
ATIF FEANT X faE WSH (OECD) FT HAAMEAEEA @ 030 AT (ava Ffqeadr Ut 3.4
JTRTAe GHAT T G Q0] HT A & Jraeras QAR AATAAT g g SATHIT TR FIT |
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FIAE-IR FT AETHIAH THEETE ATATHT a9 TAEAALATHT 9 0% &1 Fwed Te HA qER
ATIAG, e FTHTT TTRURTS, | T I, Fvaeardy srfeqaear FNE-q% H WeTHT Jae qig R
HeqT 7IF @ ATHT TG G |

Tftea IRGEaHAT, FISHTSIHT Eed FSTEwH! ATICTHT TANTIT AT GEQATHT qfg g T T aT
EIed GUSHT SATIR TETSHH! AINT @t AT AT GAAFT FTHTT TRUHG, | FrARAeT FooTAehT
A FEATTH! ATTHA T WATATATE ATTTLAAT SAAT HEaTT IRTeqelt gy AT TRTHs | i -«
FIEEA BleAD] AFITA AU HATHTAT T FAAT T EECAB AT TTATIATE ABRICHE AU
qHEF FATET T |

FIAS-IR TETHRT TGB! sAFANIEF ATHATE FAW @A I EeAdrs FeTH Farg«  qedrad
TPRICHE TATAATS HH T ATFT SAGATAATS (R TTAT FAH AR AT IIIh IS
ATATSA X AT THEH TAHAT LT BIrgd T AIAT ST TAREBT FHATH Wled (AT ToRaTs
FAW MGG FANTIT AECAIU FXT SOAE qoT Jqra« qeategq gofatirw @ fraeor
AEIATAET TTARA T [T ITUTEA AT JATATS, (AR ST TETSART AT AT GoaTeAH
RATT T STIEIIT FHE T ITAT o < Giqag i |

AT ATHTTAH-ATTHF TRTET T F Tgal AR TRGYAH Fa=a T aa T qrifeedrs quR T
HAGIHAT IR TP AT TS AT I TAHT TeACAETH FAEA AAATAEEATS (I T
TIERATE AT AECATU GedNT GHAAH AT G |

ATHI TAH ThEA Teed ATAT MQATGAT GER ATITRT AT ATHT T AT ATATI AT BT,
WA T AT TWRET TIed Teqed A0 FFaedl MAarages el a7 T MR TPdra |

FERT WA I HETARIETE Y& @R TRUETHT, TIEE ATAEEA ATATHT ATAAT S(ATG T Weal Tieet
IEEH [YaeT T WAl 1 ATIFRIEeaTe el AR [AULHTT Gde ATATHT AT e S |
T T TFaeaes FIAE % A8 M= T 570 IFaH X Bl T TaF 9T ANTIHeeh
TWRTAH! AT TITR ATYRY, IRBRA IESH! eqTH I FATUAEEdATS Traedhl JagaHT Bivgd KT
THEA Traedesdl AN TGS Hed T-aT9 ATavd+s, |

gieasl RATvSS

FoATAF AT T8 T4 Fieal HIGA ARl ATHETE TRIAA grehirenved aieed 9 (IHG) &t
QU TETCaHT et aifas 37 (are) fafreed e fled saaearas @ewtan faf 39 S joug
Q¥ | J0]9) AT YU WUUE EIeaars RFMEse T T Wied! FISHIUST ATHTHR TRTHT FRT
AR ARG HETTHATAEETATE ATAH TGS, |

TIRATE Fr9eTse FAeRe fefvemes Rarivss

FoATAF AIATT EIEeAATE T Hied! FBISHITST FI EIAT T FIFSS T ATHTERUT THT AT FFIAA
AUTAR! Tep WA FFARINET &R I ATIIVE ATARE! ACATY AP FALATAH ST-FATSE FATERS qal
TR T A9 T4 A TE 0 @5 AHH QAT FoATAqHT el TIRATSTd Srdlse HeERe
fefieeTs TSl qEITATR GeTad HFl TATEol FASE FIENRS Fehe (MHeSHT XU
it TETIAT FERIATET ATl AT 005 ATHTE % T TGN T R0 T[ATE 40 AT AT
AUty Tafd 00 TATE W A TEAAR T 039 (13 {9 g 0] gAY e TRAT (Gategourmet)
ATHH FIUSHT FOR A TS FERS A9 MRS T /A FEwRATE (Gate Gourmet
Switzerland Gmbh, Switzerland) & Tﬁ' TTHCAHT IWH FETdE AT e RAC TR diérg .
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(Gate Gourmet Singapore Pte Ltd.) S qTtatee qeraar FERTAT T ﬁm (The Soaltee
Gate Gourmet) I FHHT RATUST T FATATAT ATTHT FIT AT TAREAHETTHTAS IS
STHEHRT TRISH =6, |

ERISIAT ATI’ Fv€ X ATHAT QAU ATGwoehl G

TIAF GG A AWRE IgaT Tgedw frfed swaringd  faameae Aamike 9gad
FAAIHT T 039 A q g AR T fas TERTT TR FIUE AT ERIESE A6 @ T
frqea srRiftea fammaegear afqfafite GaFdied TR Ar9esl gourad TRUHT S48 I<T
TG NARGAT HETTAIAETATS (9] AP TRISEH, |

TE qIT JATH FaEqR q91 TRt

FFIAA EIECART TGAEEATS JIF TR AT TUT FIaaeesd! MR [@eR q9qr @Rt T
EHAT U THITH FOHETT ATTAF THAT FFAAA EISAAT LH THT FEAAT T AT AF
e TFIeT QAT AT (FRE §) WET HeeR Frhed B q9T A7 S5F FHETEEH (AR
TR 9T AR T B 8T ATHS, |

& AT FaATRT HATHT TTAT IR I T TH HFIATD! AR STAT FFIAA BTeAb oA
3 A TiRar aaa gt Hed TEr ATy w1 AT B-aSAT TAHATIT q9r TaRiedt T Jror
FACHG, | A& TAAIT TAT AT TGN, BTART Aael TS RIEEedTs AT eqH T
TAAI T I TTEH AARH (@ e qR I Jashaad geedl A Tger fauw fave aemr
fretor T T TR AT © | AR AT HFIAA SEARE AT STRUESHATS Jaesnae <
TS A EFAHARg aTarg SRl T FIT ahS; O goard= @9l ard Hram
ICHSAATE GHA TIATHT T FEANT TATS G |

gfsifaer fafadieo

Hiedl gfeaertadr fafaes

FEI FTSHTUS! JUCHAFT AR FFIARl TSHTE TAT FIVE AT TR EEAeE qoare T
SMEAHF IMATE 0T W ATAR FFIAD QU ST Tedl FFIAl U, J0%3 AT
FEra Hiee! afeqertate fafaes el IUid: T@aEd TeTd@® FFIl GITaar TR STh FFIATeH
TR IR FAT Y, FAS TR TGDH G | AR AR, FES GETIF HIA, Diedl
eferariafe fafreeard & 9 #0S % @M@ Y0 eWR AT 99 §AR GRTAT SO @Y aiw
YRRt AIRT STeRTAT TR G |

Hiedl Rrafhy gieeq aom Raeq . fa.

FEIAIH! GETAF HFIAI, Fiedl aeqardie fAfies AR I+ ol Haqa® FURE FeITIE
AMAFAEEEH FEFTAHT AITAT GIh AT FFIAT Fledl RTERH Sdeq qar REeq .
&, WL TR AITATSS I GEGRTHT §ed AT TAT WO THHT AT Al IR G |
iedl RatwH gideq TS REeq WA diedl efeqeriadr fAAdgs®l ATHAT At WUHT A aer
FITE, SATITRSE AW TAT TSHTH A~ ATHAT T FIdAe® oA TG, | Ith Fled! greqeredr
fafres a9 FFate T WA AP TETqF HFAAT af | T3 HFIART [T SSHS Forora o
(ATZAY) ERITTH STFEIT AraiTd Fled! IS, Wiedl &g MTHER T ied! aedrs RKEd @
Syl




vt itz ghvIET 3006/06s Soaltee Hofel Limifed
Tredt Rrafww aieeq qur ey yrgde fafaessr wnfica, samEa< s aur Serea T @t e
AT GRITET UTSTHT SHafed 1S (LEED) FHTTERS T aR e &ree “diedr aws ffrar”
AT, TUETHT GATATHT el G |
ferer grexayme AR #9 yrewe fafies

FFAA AT FreXee qrak &9 HFIAl Wigde fatads (HIPC) AThT W qrax &va=
grgde fafids (BKPC) AT &+ TR |

A ASE apr GIaasad T o TR ATAR THidH THITHT PRI STGUE] Aot wrepei
Trl?'l'Pﬂ'{Ifr AT (Upper Bhote Koshi Hydroelectric Project (UBKHEP)) &t ‘f‘lﬁ'ﬂ'i'UT FT FEI
qE 0% IV § (09R fedwar I3) T ¥ S woIve SATEaAIE FAHT oA W Afted frgwr
faea wmgfd I MU @ | WMeA SRl SAtaET AT (UBKHEP) TRIMWIT e
FArEEH IR AHAT TRIEH AT Ui TFT U FARET SR RO TE-JehT= Sy
T ATEH! X FIAAH] TWE JATEd! ATARAT ATTAE 96 009/ (ROR0/RY) B AT TIET
A= AT S[RRTAT AT T qF &0 I7h HEIA AR IR |

FFIAP SAAATIAT HEARX T TG A8

¥ 00 F YEANG F [T TTH PRI FITS-9% TETHIIR! ATCATRIT THT T R0RQ
et g 3 TP TEH T ARFTE RiAwE IR favaw T awcaniitg TuRT g@ A <
TAYAH GTHAAT TRIERIG, | FIAS-9R BT THTHT HRA ATH J0%0 I AATART ATAATT A0
THed T AEY gEIad WUE @ | ARG d [EHTT gvg WOE, qIAiee QU R
ANRFETATE AT-ATFT TREEHT T qEqI, Tae a0 giqaed @t @ 3 WiEds S T
FeATd WA ATAATT I YA S AHI QUIRTHT 399 @S, | THH PR IA: WA FUNTET
AT WAUHT T 9 ATATATT TAT T ST AT IR THAITI AT |

fava Swatr snfueike quaTy 9MER, fava SEEr Jure e GEaRIHT 99 0% F AT
TN F TRTHT JiAagad AAAH HA AEET IcqEA (GDP) FF 00 AT 3 3RA I/ FAS &0
TG FARPT TARX Twh! IFHG | AR BA Y@L IJAEAA (999 AdA=AbT 0,03 Fheaera
JratHtaea e | AATAHT ATIF a6 T 00 BN 4. TANAHT FFEATATE AT IS T 039 AT
HA JEET ICAEAAT 39 FOqT A qig g AqeT IRUre | fospratytar cimame sl @
R0%9 W1 9.R FRTeTAS afy g TEUU TRTEHHT FIRIFTHIEEH THT Tl G 0] AT TRTATH
HATTAT .3 @ LY IITed €FH FAA @A ATA TRUEHEG | T FIHS-R F HETH ThT
T AT GIH @RI TIT TIOATAT ACHT feArqaiene RIS e e gaifaa v @
Hicpeae il

IRTT TRFETAT FHAE 7AT e A 039 A 5.8 FAAHT T FhgHT Y G J0IR AT 9
FITRTTRT T ARG g TATTATT e bl | WIRAAT T R0]] AT 99 FAera X 033 A7 1.y Fieeraest
WA AIF FGAT HH AT ATATT TRUSIG, | TRIAT 1T HIIERIT F 039 A1 .3 g ¥
TEA Bl ATATAT T T RO AT © IFATHT @9 U MRTRIS, | 3R AST-AEEHT Graept ST
W AT GG UG T e TR e e @ g T #RE o Sedaeae
qEATHT R eTer R |
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T 0% H AN G [T FFA IR TRET STAT FIAS-RFT TAT A qRepl AR AR
FRU IF AP AP IRTIAT WHET FREE ARG | SqaQqd I ITHREATS Th a9
Tfecel TAATHT A HETHT ARATHHT JTAGEATS A¥h THTEI FXRUERT AT F&TH ATHT BRI
I AT GTTEe AR T TAT AEREeATs ANTHI fedeear qfee swar fafra T afew sret
TRUHG | ST THETH qTaS(d &TH1T THETHT B(E AR g1 GHA8E MGUHTSA | G 030 &
afrer wfewr g THEEF ATTHA AT GTHAT A¥ET 50 Mg Q00 JieaRTa I & arwerr e |
AU AAE TF 009 /9z AT T MEET ICAEAAT ¥ FiAeae qfg g7 FTH Rrg, [T I
0% F TfEaTer faere akg™ (Asian Development Outlook 2021 ) & F&qUr 39 Ffeera swat
FiE WHG | A TROWH FTA FITES-IR 1 TF: FRATR! FAATH IqAET o T I 3%
TRH FHIAT TRTEHT Pt | a9 T, a9 3030 AT AAT@AT qredfaed G=d 9 Taerasd Tt
oy, T wfedtat SeATAIRRT FET S Pt | Fat ARuue afeaer FITE-9R B AETATGE THqR
FHATA &N AATeAAT ATR=raarent feafd o T |

AAAHT qIET IUNH F 1’4 Mg ARG THEHFEEHT AT AT CHMHAT TqA SATIATHA
IR 7 AR Gohe T ATUTETH YTHAT T ATTHT T | AUTAHT T SUA 09 FTeA SI0G R TR
HETSHF, 0O MRET & MG 0V ERM IR A FFHAH ATHTEEIR Y 8T 008 =TT 94
gt FATS-9% FT FETHRIET HRIT G0 AATAATHT TFAR ETT HI TRBS; |

YT YTeRfae Fieadar, HeT Uqetiaes, YEhas qu7 diiHes FrIer, a9+ JA=HF T, HARH
I, WWW?W%MWWﬁWWWW
Ww@qmﬁlmaﬂaﬁwmﬁ%mﬁﬁ??ﬂﬁwaﬁﬁﬁwmhwwﬁ
mwmnawmmﬁmﬁamﬁiﬁﬂﬁwrﬁﬁaﬁwwwm
G@WWW mﬁﬁwwm AMGT TATRIERI T JAGATCHSE Terarg srear
FEEA TUEA SUNTH! (b WéﬁTWWl

FFIATET SNNTE TT AT a7 SATAQTAR GEelee

T T TR AT FFIAH FHARIEEATH raed TS GHER, TETIIV I IJehse Zept
TEY AWEFRI WS | 9 a9 U Fed sqaedue I FHANEE q9 Thae dcd=d Qeraaur
ATATEARITHT ATHIEF TTAT EISAFT ATATT TEATEEATE SUASH AUT-SNAH TANT TS FHTAGETATH
Y ICHL X IR a7 I T qAT Bleaqars eI THpl AT qaArad S8 aATg Al
FET IO T HTAHT AN ThoE WE TRER e T A&7 AeT Hd e waT |

FoF AATT Wied! TRARET T FHANEEH! JoARE! SATAAANE  PIARIAAT GiTept
giaagar, TR T STALATIAT SISl TElFal Gedrd Uad UETH! GRTedT, GEATH, T04ET <
FX TS GEETS T FEIAIH! YT T IrAd T AR 9 e, HTAGETAT, TH T TednT, T TR
T T TR IR QAT 00§ TRIPT I ATCATRIT FAIAEATE AATE TTHT FOAAT T 97
A TATIS FFIAH TIFTHT F G R AT TCTEA I e FHXTT g X (v @l g |
Tredl EIEAHT ATRAT AT TEATES, ATHI ATATFATES, ATIITAFES, Fhae TAT A7T FEATET,
qTAT TAEIES, AT SHAREE I TRIARIRIATEE, ITHA TIvdIes I TIRATS UEs, QX (Habraet
afrFries ¥ framme femaesa doava T, qER ¥ eIV Aaaiasd graey W g |
FEIAT FFORINET HFAATITS W& TR e QraaT ared QRITEadd (A1eT) # efeqeniadl a5
| HFEIAT A FANT AT AR TANAUE & 81 79 Bled QGaad A% A9 (FT)
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ST AT €9, T 99T Sie=de dh Il Ahedo & G I el & |

FHAT FFIY, STALATT GHE, TIT FIAS-R FETHRN THT THTE ~IAHI

FFIAS FTAGFIEAAT ATETAH TRUTH JIeq T IS AIRT g8 FTHLTH a9 Swthar
T YT BIATART AT Feqried T HHE I sqaeqq fa= Hatha 991 RS SwdthaT d®es
(ETS7Ed THIETE®) TooTa TS AT T | FFIAIA FHANEEATS BIAGETATHT ATRT LA TRTETo

YT TS ATTH T | S HHAS 9 FETHIGR AT G FHAIETATE e el HOg
FEGFEA T FFIEl GREMCHP AT FTATIA qAT YREW T WA Terhel A¥qTq qeaedy
ARG FEavhl qAH q9r FFfrad SAare Jred RET I T@eed GFaedl AIIgUges qradr T4

Fratry fawaar fMReaR RIETT 9aM AT | FNE QR HETHIRIE G QRGTT WS 9T JaTE
T qT RUTA FYAT FH T GEAgHT G AR AONTHATH AT AT AR oo
FRA gt =4
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B.I(. AGRAWAL & CO. Saraswati Vggika
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 122 Pannahiti Marg,

Sifal - Ward No. 7
MEMBER CROWE GLOBAL P.O. Box 3761, Kathmandu, Nepal.

T. +977-1-4481865, 4467694
F: +977-1-4480065

E: bkag@crowe.com.np

W: www.crowe.com/np

Independent Auditors’ Report
to the Shareholders of
Soaltee Hotel Limited

Opinion:

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of M/s Soaltee Hotel Limited (hereinafter referred
to as ‘the Company’) which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15,
2021), and the Statement of Profit or Loss, Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of
Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows attached thereto, for the year then ended and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of Significant Accounting Policies and other Explanatory Notes &
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Financial Statement read together with Notes forming part of the financial statement give the information
required by the provisions of Nepal Companies Act, 2006, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required
and, give a true and fair view in conformity with the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS), of the state
of affairs of the Company as at Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021), its Profit/(Loss) including its Total
Comprehensive Income, Cash Flows and the Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion:

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs) issued by the Auditing
Standard Board of Nepal. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditors'
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statement section of our report. We are independent of the
Entity in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statement under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2006 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with those requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter:

The effect of COVID-19 pandemic is visible from the incurred losses by the company during the current year.
However, the management has assessed the impact from such uncertainties on its financial performance
which has been mentioned in Note 2.1.3 (e) & 4.21. We do not modify our opinion in this regard.

Key Audit Matters:

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the financial statements of the current period. Based on the circumstances and facts of the audit, we
consider following as key audit matters:

S.N. Details of Key Audit Matters How the matters were addressed in our audit
1 Revenue Recognition
(Refer Note 2.2.16 "Revenue" and Note 3.15 of the financial statements)

Revenue from sale of service (hereinafter | Our audit procedures included the following:
referred to as "Revenue") is recognized at the
time of delivery of services and it is probable
that the future economic benefits will flow to
the Company and that revenue and associated
costs incurred or to be incurred can be reliably
measured and no any performance obligation
is pending with respect to revenue recognized.

e Assessed the appropriateness of the
Company's revenue recognition accounting
policies in line with NAS 18 (Revenue) and
testing the accounting of revenue in books of
accounts thereof.
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B.K. AGRAWAL & CoO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

S.N. Details of Key Audit Matters How the matters were addressed in our audit
Revenue is key driver of the business and | ¢ Evaluated the integrity of the Company's
recorded in complex IT system and general information and technology control
environment. Likewise, revenue also includes environment and tested the operating
high number of individual and low value effectiveness of IT application controls over
transaction therefore in respect of services revenue recognition, the detailed process flow
provided there is risk that revenue is recorded of sales, segregation of duties for the process
inappropriately relative to the provision of the followed, automated steps and manually
underlying service. intervened processes.

Therefore, due to significant risk embedded in | o« Performed detailed analysis of Revenue,
revenue we have identified revenue analytical testing with sales information filed
recognition as a Key Audit Matter for the with tax authorities, testing the timing of its
current period. recognition and accuracy of the amounts

recognized and verification of the supporting
information of the Revenue transactions.

e Tested a sample of revenue transactions in
relation to the provision of services room sales
and assessing them against relevant
supporting documentation/sales contracts to
determine income has been appropriately
recognized.

2 Properly, Plant and Equipment and Investment Property
(refer Note 2.2.6,2.2.8, 3.1 and 3.3 of the Financial Statements)

There are areas where management | We assessed the controls in place over the fixed
judgement impacts the carrying value of | asset, evaluated the appropriateness of
property, plant and equipment and investment | capitalization process, performed tests on costs
property and their respective depreciation or | capitalized, the timeliness of the capitalization of
amortization rates. These include the decision | the assets and the derecognition criteria for assets
to capitalize or expense the costs, the annual | retired from active use. In performing these
asset life review: the timeliness of the | procedures, we reviewed the judgments made by
capitalization of assets and the use of | the management including the nature of underlying
management assumptions and estimates for | costs capitalized, impairment, determination of
the determination or the measurement and | realizable value of the assets retired from the
recognition criteria for assets retired from | active use, the appropriateness of useful life of
active use. Due to the materiality in the context | assets. We have observed that the management
of the balance sheet of the company and the | has regularly reviewed the aforesaid judgements
level of judgment and estimates required, we | and there are no material misstatement of
consider this to be a Key Audit Matter. impairment and capitalization of assets

Other Information:

The directors are responsible for the other information such as "Report of Board of Director's/Chairman's
Statement” to be presented in the Annual Report and Accounts for FY 2077/78 (2020-21) of the Soaltee
Hotel Limited. Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and,
accordingly, we do not express any audit opinion or, except as explicitly stated above, any form of assurance
conclusion thereon. Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether,
based on audit work done by us on financial statement, the information therein is materially misstated or
inconsistent with the Financial Statements. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for the Financial Statements:

The company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation
of these financial statements in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records for safeguarding the assets of the Entity and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that are operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the

financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error. —
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In preparing the financial statement, the respective management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial information.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of financial statement, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. We are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statement, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statement represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be considered to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were

of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters.

We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected

to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 3
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a reasonable
basis for our audit opinion.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

On the basis of our examination, we would like to further report that:

i)

i)

iii)

Kathmandu

We have obtained information and explanations, which, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as appears from our examination of such books;

In our opinion, the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss, Statement of
Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity
attached thereto, for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of Significant Accounting Policies and other Explanatory Notes & information dealt
with by this report are in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2006 and are in
agreement with the books of account maintained by the company;

In our opinion, so far as appeared from our examination of the books, the business of the
Company has been conducted satisfactorily; and

To the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and from our
examination of the books of accounts of the Company necessary for the purposes of the audit,
we have not come across cases where the Board of Directors or any employees of the
Company have acted contrary to legal provisions relating to accounts, or committed any
misappropriation or caused loss or damage to the company or committed any accounting fraud
in the company.

B .

B.K. Agrawal, FCA
Managing Partner
For: B.K. Agrawal & Co.

Date: 8" October, 2021 Chartered Accountants

UDIN: 211011CA00018zQ90H
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
For the period ended on 31 Ashad 2078 (15 July 2021)
Notes to the Financial Statements

1. General Information

Soaltee Hotel Limited (the Company or SHL) is a limited liability company registered with
Office of Company Registrar as per erstwhile Company Act. Its shares are enlisted with
Security Board of Nepal (SEBON) and listed and traded at Nepal Stock Exchange Ltd.
(NEPSE). The registered office of the Company and the principal place of business is located
at Tahachal, Kathmandu, Nepal. Since its incorporation more than 50 years, SHL has been
catering the Tourism sector services with five star quality hotel facilities from the date of
commercial operation. SHL has invested in two subsidiaries namely H I Soaltee Hotel
Company Pvt. Ltd. and Soaltee Hospitality Ltd. for expanding its hotel business. Through
Soaltee Hospitality Ltd., wholly owned subsidiary, it has also invested in Soaltee Sibkrim
Hotels and Resorts Pvt. Ltd. with 24% share in the company.

The Company owns and operates a deluxe luxurious property classified under Five Star
category by the Government of Nepal with business name and brand "The Soaltee
Kathmandu" hotel at Tahachal, Kathmandu Metropolitan City ward No 13, Kathmandu,
Nepal. Previously, this property (hotel) was managed and operated with the name and brand
of The Soaltee Crowne Plaza Kathmandu by Holiday Inns (China) Limited, a subsidiary
company of Intercontinental Hotels Group (IHG) under the Hotel Management Agreement
which had been expired and discontinued with effect from 15th May 2021 on its expiration
date. Thereafter, the property (hotel) has been rebranded as The Soaltee Kathmandu and
managed and operated by the Company. The Soaltee Kathmandu has 282 saleable rooms
ranging from Deluxe, Club to Suites. Further, the Company also owns and operates The
Soaltee Gate Gourmet (previously known as LSG Sky Chef under the Technical Assistance
Agreement which expired on 11th July 2021) an Inflight Catering Division under a Technical
Assistance Agreement with Gate Gourmet Singapore Pte. Limited, Singapore.

The Financial Statements were authorized for issue by the meeting of the Board of Directors
on 08 October 2021 (22 Ashwin 2078) and has recommended for approval by shareholders
in the Annual General Meeting.

2. Significant Accounting Policies
2.1. Basis of Preparation

2.1.1. Statement of Compliance
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting
Standards (NFRS) as issued by Accounting Standard Board Nepal and pronounced by The
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal.

2.1.2. Basis of Measurement
These financial statements are prepared under historical cost convention except for the
following material items:
- Investment in shares of entities other than subsidiaries, which have been measured at
fair value
- Staff loans provided at subsidized interest rate, which have been measured at
amortized cost.
- Other long term liabilities (leave liability), which has been measured at present value
of the obligation.

2.1.3. Critical Accounting Estimates
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Nepal Financial Reporting
Standards (NFRS) requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and judgements.
It also requires management to exercise judgement in the process of applying the company’s
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accounting policies. The company makes certain estimates and assumptions regarding the
future events. Estimates and judgements are continuously evaluated based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. In the future, actual result may differ from these
estimates and assumptions. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are:

a) Useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment
Management reviews the useful life and residual values of property, plant and equipment at
the end of each reporting period. Such life are dependent upon an assessment of both the
technical life of the assets and also their likely economic life, based on various internal and
external factors including relative efficiency and operating costs.

b) Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its
property, plant and equipment to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Value in
use is usually determined on the basis of discounted estimated future cash flows. This
involves management estimates on anticipated commodity prices, market demand and
supply, economic and regulatory environment, discount rates and other factors. Any
subsequent changes to cash flow due to changes in the above mentioned factors could impact
on the carrying value of assets.

c) Recognition of Deferred Tax

Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies. The Company based its assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing
circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company.

Deferred tax is calculated on temporary differences using a known future tax rate 21.25%
(Previous Year 21.25%). Deferred tax assets are recognized in respect of all temporary
differences giving rise to deferred tax assets where the management believes it is probable
that these assets will be recovered.

d) Other long term employee benefits
Significant judgement is required to determine the estimated liability that shall arise on part
of unused/accumulated leave by the staff and which is generally paid out on retirement or
termination of employment. Valuation of such is done by qualified actuary using assumption
like interest rate, rate of increase in annual compensation, remaining service period etc.
Factors considered may change depending on market changes or legal changes which are
beyond the control of the company.

e) Estimation uncertainty due to COVID-19

On 11 March 2020, the World Health Organization declared Covid-19 outbreak as a
pandemic. Responding to the potentially serious threat that this pandemic has to public
health, The Nepal Government has taken a series of measures to contain the outbreak, which
included imposing multiple ‘lock-downs’ across the country, from 24 March 2020, and the
operations restriction was applicable to the hotels till 21 July 2020.

In current fiscal year 2020/21, while the impact of the Covid-19 continues to the tourism
sector, specially hospitality sector performance has been sluggish. Furthermore, the
lockdown to contain the out-break of second wave of Covid-19 was again announced by the
Government of Nepal from 26th April 2021 which continued until 8th July 2021.
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The lockdowns and restrictions imposed on various activities due to COVID — 19 pandemic
have posed challenges to all the businesses of the company. Lockdown guidelines mandated
closure of hotel operations and cessation of air traffic and other forms of public transport.
This has resulted in low occupancies / shutdowns of hotel.

The hotel was majorly shut down entirely during the lockdown phase as expect for very
limited operation of flight catering and operation few of isolation rooms. With the lifting of
the partial lockdown restrictions, the hotel has started re-opening after establishing thorough
and well-rehearsed safety protocols. The hotel expects the demand for its services to pick up
albeit at a slower pace after lockdown was lifted and recovery in business to be driven by
domestic leisure tourism, vacations, domestic business travel and limited international
travel.

The company has assessed the potential impact of Covid-19 on its capital and financial
resources, profitability, liquidity position, prospect possible alternatives for financing
arrangements, supply chain and demand for its services. The company stands at comfortable
liquidity position to meet its commitments for the year ended 15 July 2021. The company
does not foresee any disruption in materials supplies for the hotel operations.

The company has also assessed the potential impact of Covid-19 on the carrying value of
property, plant & equipment, intangible assets, investments, trade receivables, inventories,
and other current assets appearing in the financial statements of the company. In developing
the assumptions and estimates relating to the future uncertainties in the economic
conditions because of this pandemic, the company as at the date of approval of these
Financial statements has used internal and external sources of information and based on
current estimates, expects to recover the carrying amounts of these assets.

The impact of the global health pandemic may be different from that estimated as at the date
of approval of these financial statements and the company will continue to closely monitor
any material changes to future economic conditions.

2.1.4. Functional and Presentation Currency
The financial statements are prepared and presented in Nepalese Rupees (Rs.), which is also
the company’s functional currency.

2.2. Accounting Policies
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are
set out below. The policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated. The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain
accounting estimates. The areas where significant judgements and estimates have been made
in preparing the financial statements and their effects are disclosed in relevant areas.

2.2.1. Standalone financial statements
This financial statement is the standalone financial statement of the company. Consolidated
financial statement as per NFRS 10 is prepared separately.

2.2.2 Associates
Profits or losses arising on transactions between the company and its associates are
recognized only to the extent of unrelated investors' interests in the associate. The investor's
share in the associate's profits and losses resulting from these transactions is eliminated
against the carrying value of the associate.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of the company's share of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalized and included
in the carrying amount of the associate. Where there is objective evidence that the investment
in an associate has been impaired the carrying amount of the investment is tested for
impairment in the same way as other non-financial assets.
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2.2.3 Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

i. Recognition
The company initially recognizes financial assets on trade date which is the date on which
the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus, or an item not
at fair value through profit or loss, transactions costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue.

ii. Classification and Measurement
Financial Assets
The classification and measurement of financial assets depend on how these are managed
(the entity’s business model) and their contractual cash-flows characteristics. These factors
determine whether the financial assets are measured at amortized cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income (‘FVOCT’) or fair value through profit or loss (FVPL’).

— At amortized cost: Financial assets at amortized cost are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments for which the Company has intent and ability to
hold till maturity. They are initially recognized at fair value plus any directly attributable
transaction cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, such financial assets are measured
at amortized cost using effective interest rate method less any impairment losses.

— At fair value through profit or loss: Financial assets are classified at fair value through
profit or loss if the company manages such instruments and makes purchases and sales
decisions based on its fair value. Attributable transaction costs and changes in fair value
are taken to revenue.

— At fair value through other comprehensive income: Financial assets at FVOCI are
non-derivative financial assets that are not classified in any of the above category.
Financial assets at FVOCI are recognized initially at fair value plus any directly
attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets are
measured at fair value, as far as such fair value is available, and changes therein, which
are recognized in other comprehensive income and presented in the fair value reserve in
equity. When an investment is derecognized, gain or loss accumulated in equity is
reclassified to retained earnings.

Financial Liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognized initially on the trade date, which is the date that the

Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Subsequent to

initial recognition, these financial liabilities are measured at amortized costs using effective

interest rate method.

iii. Derecognition

Financial Assets

The Company derecognizes a financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash flow
from the financial assets expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows
in a transaction in which substantially all of the risk and rewards of the ownership of the
financial assets are transferred or in which the Company neither transfer nor retains
substantially all of the risk and rewards of the ownership and it does not retain control of
the financial assets.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the
assets (or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the assets derecognized) and the
sum of (i) the consideration received (including any new assets obtained less any new liability
assumed) and (i) any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in Other
Comprehensive Income (OCI) is recognized in retained earnings.
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Financial Liabilities
The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged or cancelled or expired.

iv. Offsetting
The financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the
statement of financial position when and only when, the Company has a legal right to set off
the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

v. Amortized cost measurement
The 'amortized cost' of a financial asset and financial liability is the amount at which the
financial asset or financial liability is measured at initial recognition, minus principal
repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest method
of any difference between initial amount recognized and the maturity amount minus any
reduction for impairment.

vi. Fair value measurement
Fair value of a financial instrument is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or
a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties at an arm’s length transaction.
Quoted market values represent fair value when a financial instrument is traded in an
organized and liquid market. Where quoted market values are not available, fair values are
estimated by other techniques.

vii. Identification and measurement of impairment

Financial assets

At each reporting date the Company assesses the objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired or not. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and
that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets or
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor

- breach of contract, such as default or delinquency by a debtor

- observable data relating to a group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment
status of debtor

The amount of loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and
amount the management considers it as recoverable on the basis of financial position of the
party and appropriate estimation made by the management. Receivables considered as less
likely to be received are provided allowance for loss and charged to Statement of Profit or
Loss.

In addition, for an investment in an unquoted equity security, a significant or prolonged
decline in its net worth is objective evidence of impairment.

Impairment losses are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss and reflected in an allowance
account against debtors. Impairment losses on equity investment are routed through
Statement of OCI. Interest on the impaired assets continues to be recognized through the
unwinding of the discount. If an event occurring after the impairment was recognized causes
the amount of impairment loss to decrease, then the decrease in impairment loss is reversed
through income statement (OCI in case of available for sale investment).

If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of an equity investments increases and the increase
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized,
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then the impairing loss is reversed through profit or loss; otherwise, any increase in fair value
is recognized through OCI.

2.2.4 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

Non-financial assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognized for the amount by which the assets carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost and value in
use. An impairment loss is recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss. Provisions against
impairment are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimates. Impairment charges are included in profit or loss except to the extent they reverse
gains previously recognized in Other Comprehensive Income.

2.2.5 Foreign Currency

Transactions entered into by the company entities in a currency other than the currency of
the primary economic environment in which they operate (the "functional currency” is Rs.)
are recorded at the rates ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary
assets and liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the reporting date. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of unsettled monetary assets and liabilities are
recognized immediately in profit or loss.

2.2.6 Property, Plant and Equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment are initially recognized at cost. Cost includes the
purchase price and other directly attributable costs as well as the estimated present value of
any future unavoidable costs of dismantling and removing items. The corresponding liability
is recognized within provisions. Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow in to the
Company. Ongoing repair and maintenance are expensed as incurred.

The Company identifies and determines cost of each component/ part of the asset separately,
if the component/ part has cost which is significant to the total cost of the asset having
useful life that is materially different from that of the remaining asset. These components are
depreciated over their useful lives; the remaining asset is depreciated over the life of the
principal asset.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted prospectively.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is
derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use
or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

Capital Work in Progress

Assets in the course of construction are capitalized in the assets under capital work in
progress (CWIP). At the point when an asset is operating at management’s intended use, the
cost of construction is transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment and depreciation commences.

Salvage Value
Company has assessed the salvage value of all its property, plant and equipment to be 5% of

its original cost.
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Depreciation

Freehold land is not depreciated. Depreciation on assets under construction does not
commence until they are complete and available for use. Depreciation is provided on all other
items of property, plant and equipment so as to write-off their carrying value over the
expected useful economic lives.

Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on Straight Line Method over their
useful life.

Management of the company has assessed useful life of the following category of assets as

mentioned.

Category of Assets Estimated useful life
Building 35 - 70 years

Other civil structures 20 - 35 years

Plant and machinery 10 - 30 years

Vehicle 10 - 20 years
Computer and accessories 7 years

Office Equipment 10 years

Furniture, fixture and furnishing 10 years

Leasehold Development 3 years

2.2.7 Intangible Assets
Computer Software
Purchased computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to
acquire and bring to use the software. These costs are amortized over the estimated useful
lives.

2.2.8 Investment Property
The Company holds certain assets (land and building) for purpose other than its core
operating function. Such assets are classified as investment property.

Items of investment property are initially recognized at cost. Cost includes the purchase price
and other directly attributable costs as well as the estimated present value of any future
unavoidable costs of dismantling and removing items. The corresponding liability is
recognized within provisions. Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow in to the company.
Ongoing repair and maintenance are expensed as incurred.

When an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment property following a
change in its use, any difference arising at the date of transfer between the carrying amount
of the item and its fair value is recognized directly in equity if it is a gain. Upon disposal of
the item, the gain is transferred to retained earnings. Any loss is recognized in statement of
profit or loss.

Incomes arising from use of investment property by third parties are recognized as lease
income from operating lease. The lease rental is adjusted for inflation rate periodically and
the same amount is booked as operating lease income, which the Company believes is more
representative than the straight line method, in line with para 50 of NAS 17: Leases.
Salvage Value

Company has assessed the salvage value of its depreciable investment property to be 5% of
its original cost.

Depreciation

Land that form part of investment property is not depreciated. Depreciation is provided on
other items of investment property so as to write-off their carrying value over the expected
useful economic lives.

Depreciable investment properties are depreciated on Straight Line Method over their useful
life. Management considered the useful life of investment property to be of 55 years.
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2.2.9 Investments
Investments in shares of the companies are classified as either at amortized cost or at fair
value. The classification of investment and its subsequent measurement is dependent on the
business model for managing such investments and contractual cash flow characteristics.

Investments are measured at fair value unless measured at amortized cost. Investments are
measured at amortized cost if such investment is held with in order to collect contractual
cash flows and contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
Subsequent changes in the investments measured at amortized cost are charged to Profit or
Loss. Investments measured at fair value opting the routing through Other Comprehensive
Income, at initial recognition, for adjusting the changes in fair value are charged through
Other Comprehensive Income that forms part of the equity of the Company. Changes in fair
value of other investments are charged to Profit or Loss.

2.2.10 Inventories
Stock of food, beverages, store and operating supplies are initially recognized at cost and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Net realizable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the variable selling expenses.

The cost is determined on weighted average method and includes expenditure incurred
directly in acquiring the inventories and bringing them to their present location and
condition.

2.2.11 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash balances, call deposits and other short term
highly liquid investments. For the purpose, any cash placement deposits, call deposit or other
highly liquid items with the maturity period of 90 days from the date of transaction is
considered as cash equivalent.

2.2.12 Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are stated at transaction value less allowance for impairment.
Staff loan are measured at amortized cost. Discounting rate has been arrived by considering
comparable market rates of similar types of loan. Difference of amortized value and book
value of loan is charged to profit or loss for the period of staff loan.

2.2.13 Share capital
Financial instruments issued by the company are classified as equity only to the extent that
they do not meet the definition of a financial liability or financial asset. The company’s equity
shares are classified as equity instruments.

2.2.14 Employee Benefits
Employee benefits are either defined benefit plan or defined contribution plan. Employee
benefits of the company comprise of gratuity, provident fund and accumulated leave. These
benefits are provided as per the Employee Service Manual and Collective Bargaining
Agreement between Employee Union and the Company.

Provident Fund-Defined Contribution Plan

The Company pays pre-defined amount to Social Security Fund (SSF) and the company does
not have any legal or constructive obligation to pay additional amount in future.
Contributions to Provident fund are charged to the statement of profit or loss in the year to
which they relate.




2.2.15

2.2.16

Gratuity-Defined Contribution Plan

The Company is required to pay pre-defined amount to Social Security Fund as gratuity to
employees. The Company accrues 8.33% of basic salary of staff as gratuity benefits in
accordance with Labor Law of Nepal and the Company has deposited Employee Gratuity in
SSF. The amount presented in financial statements is the actual liability of gratuity at each
reporting date.

Short term and long-term employment benefits

A liability is recognized for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries,
annual leave and sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognized in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Accumulated leaves, encashment of which are not expected to occur within twelve months
after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related services are recognized
as a liability at the present value of the obligation as at the reporting date determined based
on an actuarial valuation.

Income Tax
Deferred Tax

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilized. The carrying amount of
deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part
of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided
is based on the expected realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities using tax rates that are expected to apply in subsequent periods.

Current Tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year using tax rates at
the reporting date and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. Current
tax is calculated reasonably in accordance with the provisions of Income Tax Act as per
management assumption and bet judgement.

General corporate tax rate is 25%. The Company is entitled to a rebate of 15% on the General
tax rate as per the provisions of Income Tax Act 2058. Additionally, for FY 2077/78, the
Finance Act 2078 has declared corporate tax rate is only 1% on tax liability to hotel business
affected by COVID-19. Accordingly, tax rate applicable to the company for current fiscal year
is 1% (previous year rate was 17%).

Revenue

Revenue is recognized only when it is probable that the future economic benefits will flow to
the Company and that revenue and associated costs incurred or to be incurred can be reliably
measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable

net of Value Added Taxes, Civil Aviation Fee and Service Charges where applicable.

imited
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Revenue from Sale of Services

Revenue is recognized at the time of delivery of services and is stated net of Value Added Tax
(VAT) and Service Charges. Revenue from LSG Sky Chef -Flight Catering Unit sales is stated
net of Civil Aviation Fee & Service charge.

Revenue from package sales is disclosed net of credits and refunds, included as part of the
package.

Service Charge

Income from service charges is recognized on accrual basis net of contribution to be made to
the Hotel Association Nepal (HAN) and the Employees as per Labour Rules as per the previous

agreement between HAN and representatives of the Employees Union.
Dividend

Dividend income from investment in shares is recognized when the right to receive the

payment is established.
Other Income

Other income are recognized on accrual basis when there are reasonable basis to ascertain
the amount and there is reasonable basis for recoverability except for certain membership
fees which are insignificant to the total revenue.

2.2.17 Expenses

Expenses are accounted on accrual basis where there are reasonable basis to estimate

ascertain the obligation and rationality of such obligation.
Management Fee

Management fee payable to Holiday Inns (China) Limited for hotel operation is based on fixed
percentage of the adjusted Gross Revenue and Gross Operating Profit as specified in the

Hotel Management Agreement.

License Fee

License fees payable in relation to technical assistance to LSG Catering Hong Kong Limited,
to operate the Flight Catering Unit under the brand name of LSG Sky Chefs’ is based on a
fixed percentage of the Net Sales Value as specified in the Technical Assistance Agreement.

Employee Bonus
Employee bonus is provided in line with the provisions of Bonus Act 2030 BS.
2.2.18 Lease

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the
substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains,
a lease if fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets
and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not

explicitly specified in an arrangement.

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. For
arrangements entered into prior to 1 Shrawan 2074 the Company has determined whether

the arrangement contain lease on the basis of facts and circumstances existing on the date

of transition.




2.2.19

2.2.20

The Company has entered into operating lease arrangement for use of property at LSG Flight
Kitchen. The lease rental is adjusted for inflation rate periodically and the same amount is
booked as operating lease expenses, which the Company believes is more representative than
the straight line method, in line with para 33 of NAS 17: Leases.

The Company has entered into operating lease arrangement allowing to use its facilities and
infrastructures to third parties. The lease rental is adjusted for inflation rate periodically and
the same amount is booked as operating lease income, which the Company believes is more

representative than the straight line method, in line with para 50 of NAS 17: Leases.
Provisions

The Company applies NAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets in
accounting for non-financial liabilities.

Provisions are recognized for present obligations arising as consequences of past events
where it is more likely than not that a transfer of economic benefit will be necessary to settle
the obligation, which can be reliably estimated. Provision is made for the anticipated costs
when an obligation exists.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in statement of financial position based on
current/non-current classification. Based on the nature of products and the time between
acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the
Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current/non-

current classification of assets and liabilities.

The Company classifies an asset as current when it is:

- Expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
- Held primarily for the purpose of trading
- Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability

for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

The Company classifies a liability as current when:

* It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

* It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

¢ It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

* There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve

months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

imited
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2.2.21 Segment Reporting

The Company’s segmental reporting is in accordance with NFRS 8 Operating Segments.
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the Company's management, which is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments. All transactions between business segments are
conducted on an arm's length basis, with intra-segment revenue and costs being eliminated
centrally. Income and expenses directly associated with each segment are included in

determining business segment performance.
2.2.22 Government Grant

Government grants, including non-monetary grants at fair value, is recognized when there is
reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions attaching to grant
and the grants will be received. Government grants is recognized in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Company recognizes as expenses the related

costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

2.2.23 Operating Cycle

The Company considers its operating cycle to be of 12 months.
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2078 (15 July 2021)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 3.2: Intangible Assets
Amount in Rs.

Particulars | Software I Total
Cost
Balance at 01.04.2076 13,051,443 13,051,443
Addition 1,886,211 1,886,211
Disposal/Transfer - -
Balance at 31.03.2077 14,937,654 14,937,654
Addition - -
Disposal - -
Balance at 31.03.2078 14,937,654 14,937,654
Amortization
Balance at 01.04.2076 12,124,124 12,124,124
Charge for the year 778,791 778,791
Disposal - -
Balance at 31.03.2077 12,902,915 12,902,915
Charge for the year 828,401 828,401
Disposal - -
Balance at 31.03.2078 13,731,316 13,731,316
Net Book Value
At 01.04.2076 927,319 927,319
At 31.03.2077 2,034,739 2,034,739
At 31.03.2078 1,206,338 1,206,338

Note 3.3: Investment Property

Amount in Rs.

Particulars Freehold Land | Building Total
Cost
Balance at 01.04.2076 4,707,287 166,146,812 170,854,100
Addition - - -
Disposal/Transfer - - -
Balance at 31.03.2077 4,707,287 166,146,812 170,854,100
Addition - - -
Disposal - - -
Balance at 31.03.2078 4,707,287 166,146,812 170,854,100
Amortization
Balance at 01.04.2076 - 75,740,113 75,740,113
Charge for the year - 1,979,123 1,979,123
Disposal - - -
Balance at 31.03.2077 - 77,719,236 77,719,236
Charge for the year - 1,979,123 1,979,123
Disposal - - -
Balance at 31.03.2078 - 79,698,359 79,698,359
Net Book Value
At 01.04.2076 4,707,287 90,406,699 95,113,987
At 31.03.2077 4,707,287 88,427,576 93,134,864
At 31.03.2078 4,707,287 86,448,453 91,155,741




¥93t aTifE giqaed J086/ovs Soaltee Hofel L

SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2078 (15 July 2021)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 3.4: Deferred Tax Assets

Deferred tax is calculated on temporary differences using known future tax rate effective to the Company
21.25% (Previous Year 21.25%). Deferred tax assets are recognized in respect of all temporary differences
giving rise to deferred tax assets where the management believes it is probable that these assets will be

recovered.
Amount in Rs.
q Credit/(Charge) | Credit/(Charge)
Particulars 01.04.2077 to SOPL to OCI 31.03.2078
Fixed Assets (36,276,929) (9,352,796) - (45,629,725)
Gratuity Provision 53,629,411 (29,294,944) - 24,334,467
Provision for Leave 25,576,794 (11,983,898) - 13,592,896
Trade and Other Receivable 7,781,178 1,062,500 - 8,843,678
Total 50,710,454 (49,569,138) - 1,141,316
q Credit/(Charge) | Credit/(Charge)
Particulars 01.04.2076 to SOPL to OCI 31.03.2077
Fixed Assets (23,966,045) (12,310,884) - (36,276,929)
Gratuity Provision 55,664,769 (2,035,358) - 53,629,411
Provision for Leave 24,270,980 1,305,814 - 25,576,794
Trade and Other Receivable 6,718,678 1,062,500 - 7,781,178
Total 62,688,382 (11,977,928) - 50,710,454
Note 3.5: Investments
Amount in Rs.
Particulars 31.03.2078 31.03.2077
Non-Current
At Amortized Cost
At Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
At Fair Value Through OCI 283,895,258 283,899,180
Total 283,895,258 283,899,180
Current
At Amortized Cost - 80,000,000
At Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
At Fair Value Through OCI
Total - 80,000,000
Investment comprises the following:
At Amortized Cost (A) 31.03.2078 31.03.2077
Term Deposit - 80,000,000
Total Investment at Amortized Cost - 80,000,000
At Fair Value Through OCI (B)
Investment in Subsidiaries
};Iais)oaltee Hotel Company Pvt. Ltd. (99,500 shares of Rs. 100 9,950,000 9,950,000
Soaltee Hospitality Ltd. (2,500,000 shares of Rs. 100 each) 250,000,000 250,000,000
Advance for Investment in Soaltee Hospitality Ltd. 12,640,000 12,640,000
Sub-Total 272,590,000 272,590,000
Investment in Associates
H I Soaltee Management Co. Limited (2,600 shares of HK$ 1) 16,538 16,538
Less: Allowance for Impairment (16,538) (16,538)
Sub-Total - -
Investment in Other Entities
Himal International Power Corp. Pvt. Ltd. (100,000 shares of Rs. 11,305,258 11,309,180
100 each)
Sub-Total 11,305,258 11,309,180
Total Investment through OCI 283,895,258 283,899,180
Proportion of voting rights
H I Soaltee Hotel Company Pvt. Ltd. 73.63% 73.63%
Soaltee Hospitality Ltd. 100% 100%
H I Soaltee Management Co. Limited 26% 26%
Himal International Power Corp. Pvt. Ltd. 5.97% 5.97%

The net worth of H I Soaltee Management Co. Ltd. is negative since many years and accordingly,
impairment has been accounted.

imited
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2078 (15 July 2021)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 3.6: Trade and Other Receivable

Amount in Rs.

Particulars 31.03.2078 31.03.2077
Non-Current
Other Receivable 7,051,419 7,051,419
Deposit for Appeal 4,454,681 2,992,083
Deposits 3,714,814 3,427,464
Loans and Advances to Employees 26,088,551 49,556,592
Deferred Employee Benefit Expenses 2,015,435 2,342,996
Total 43,324,900 65,370,554
Less: Allowance for Impairment (7,051,419) (7,051,419)
Total 36,273,481 58,319,135
Current
Trade Receivable
Trade Receivable 163,320,827 193,654,762
Less: Allowance for Impairment (34,565,887) (29,565,887)
Trade Receivable-Net 128,754,940 164,088,875
Other Receivable
Loans and Advances to Employees 15,749,658 13,715,243
Loans and Advances to Other 24,600,047 6,033,967
Advances to Contractor and Suppliers 1,857,037 7,907,740
VAT Recoverable 32,298,270 10,330,274
Management Fees Recoverable 4,036,281 -
Deferred Employee Benefit Expenses 1,658,448 790,981
Total Other Receivable 80,199,741 38,778,205
Total 208,954,681 202,867,080

Additional information on Other receivable included in non-current receivable is provided in Note 4.10.1.
Trade receivables are normally collected as per credit terms with the parties, generally within a period of
90 days. Trade receivable is non-interest bearing. Additional information on Trade Receivable included in
Current Receivable is provided in Note 4.10.2.

Note 3.7: Inventories

Particulars 31.03.2078 31.03.2077
Stores and Spares 10,196,803 9,388,916
Provision, Beverage and Others 16,792,221 22,720,971
Uniform and Linen 32,650,435 17,624,454
Crockery, Cutlery etc. 14,492,046 19,017,905
Total 74,131,505 68,752,246

Note 3.8: Cash and Cash Equivalent

Particulars 31.03.2078 31.03.2077
Cash in Hand 1,396,489 2,201,601
Balances with Bank 27,294,202 207,714,396
Total 28,690,691 209,915,997
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2078 (15 July 2021)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 3.9: Share Capital

Amount in Rs.

Particulars | 31.03.2078 | 31.03.2077
Authorized Share Capital
150,000,000 Shares of Rs. 10/- each | 1,500,000,000 | 1,500,000,000
Issued Share Capital
100,000,000 Shares of Rs. 10/- each ‘ 1,000,000,000 ‘ 1,000,000,000
Subscribed and Fully Paid up
84,257,973 Shares of Rs.10/- each 842,579,730 842,579,730
Total 842,579,730 842,579,730
Reconciliation of no. of shares outstanding
Particulars 31.03.2078 31.03.2077
Balance at the beginning of the year 84,257,973 73,267,537
Add: Bonus Issue - 10,990,436
Balance at the end of year 84,257,973 84,257,973
Details of Shareholding
Major Corporate Shareholders 69% 69%
General Shareholders 31% 31%
Note 3.10: Retained Earning and Reserves
Particulars 31.03.2078 31.03.2077
Share Premium 16,000,000 16,000,000
Other Reserve 7,288,761 7,288,761
Revaluation Reserve 35,198,427 35,198,427
Fair Value Reserve for Equity Investment 1,305,258 1,309,181
Retained Earnings 529,871,643 754,805,141
Total 589,664,089 814,601,510
Note 3.11: Loans and Borrowings
Particulars | 31.03.2078 | 31.03.2077
Non-Current
Secured- Hire Purchase 1,124,779 2,601,024
Total 1,124,779 2,601,024
Current
Overdraft and Working Capital Loan 93,179,658 -
Current Portion of Hire Purchase Loan 1,399,846 1,223,356
Total 94,579,504 1,223,356
Note 3.12: Employee Benefits
Particulars [ 31.03.2078 | 31.03.2077
Non-Current
Gratuity 114,515,139 319,639,442
Less: Plan Assets (6,174,356) (67,265,742)
Net Gratuity Liability 108,340,783 252,373,700
Accumulated Leave 63,966,570 120,361,383
Total 172,307,353 372,735,083
Current
Salary and Wages Payable 9,881,025 21,612,648
Bonus Payable - 13,992,287
Total 9,881,025 35,604,935
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2078 (15 July 2021)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 3.13: Income Tax Receivable/(Payable)

Amount in Rs.

Particulars 31.03.2078 31.03.2077
Advance Income Tax 27,323,287 36,613,613
Income Tax Liability - (15,902,793)
Total 27,323,287 20,710,820

Note 3.14: Trade and Other Payable

Particulars 31.03.2078 31.03.2077
Non-Current
Retention and Security Deposit 17,432,234 16,803,661
Unclaimed Dividend 11,376,471 20,795,451
Total 28,808,705 37,599,112
Current
Sundry Creditors 246,716,787 158,709,933
Other Payable
Advances Received 90,632,297 90,632,297
Civil Aviation Fee 484,061 27,242,547
Management Fee - 4,208,002
Flight Kitchen Franchise Fee 1,834,241 393,211
Service Charge 18,495,028 22,264,683
Housing Fund 26,334,029 26,334,029
Corporate Social Responsibility 8,134,351 8,938,372
Other Liabilities 64,271,670 67,861,819

Total

456,902,464

406,584,893

Trade and other payable are non-interest bearing in nature.

Note 3.15: Revenue from Operation

Particulars 2077-78 2076-77
Room 57,427,873 311,347,423
Food 350,303,640 799,069,674
Beverage 10,458,605 35,496,562
Cigar and Cigarettes 40,180 495,025
Telephone 4,837 70,071
Laundry Income 1,977,242 5,346,392
Business Centre - 117,700
Total 420,212,377 | 1,151,942,847
Note 3.16: Other Income
Particulars 2077-78 2076-77
Premises Rental Charge 1,544,451 26,325,633
Interest on Loans & Advances at Amortized Cost 1,474,942 4,619,240
Interest on Call Account/Time Deposit 828,138 19,029,760
Miscellaneous Receipts 2,704,113 15,933,794
Income from Service Charge 6,532,211 20,733,269
Profit on Sale of Assets 518,509 584,201
Exchange Gain - 2,840,975
Government Grant towards Social Security Fund (SSF) 4,483,750 11,429,057
Reversal of Incentive Management Fee 7,835,582 -
Reversal of Provision for Gratuity - 10,570,091
Reversal of Provision for Leave 7,792,516 -
Total 33,714,212 112,066,020

Additional information on Government Grant towards SSF is provided in Note 4.19
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2078 (15 July 2021)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 3.17: Consumption of Food and Beverage

Amount in Rs.

imited

*

*

Particulars 2077-78 2076-77
Food 121,164,519 196,965,468
Beverage 2,705,874 9,121,826
Cigarettes 20,582 152,350
Total 123,890,975 206,239,644
Note 3.18: Employee Benefit Expenses
Particulars 2077-78 2076-77
Salary and Wages 90,066,478 228,549,105
Allowances 27,437,676 84,921,801
Festival Allowance - 24,707,436
Overtime 196,050 9,106,009
Employees Meal 7,657,809 19,184,745
Soaltee Staff Welfare 3,100,862 4,540,067
Gratuity 7,339,553 18,566,486
Leave - 12,561,696
Provident Fund 8,684,671 23,262,207
Clinic Expenses 1,437,148 1,962,965
Amortization of Staff Loan 206,009 2,150,598
Incentive Exit Scheme 67,857,602 -
Bonus - 13,992,287
Total 213,983,858 | 443,505,402
Additional information on Gratuity is provided in Note 4.4.a.
Note 3.19: Operating Expenses
Particulars 2077-78 2076-77
Linen 6,195,138 19,906,762
Laundry Supplies 21,801 3,481,665
Crockery & Cutlery 1,203,511 4,647,491
Silverware 4,068,270 5,074,915
Cleaning Supplies 3,339,523 6,392,432
F & B Paper Supplies 6,456,701 7,812,471
Guest Supplies 4,415,274 9,819,281
Water & Water Treatment 6,438,017 7,291,330
Garden Maintenance 7,035 28,050
Pest Control 1,330,745 2,098,800
Waste Removal 304,000 658,500
Power and Fuel 47,796,067 93,595,204
Repair and Maintenance 13,318,504 26,334,287
Total 94,894,586 187,141,188
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2078 (15 July 2021)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 3.20: Other Expenses
Amount in Rs.

Particulars 2077-78 2076-77
Rental Charges 2,533,105 1,045,560
Travelling 777,206 5,067,243
Transport and Conveyance 6,287,138 18,455,161
Audit Fee 550,000 550,000
Legal and Professional Fees 5,154,837 6,170,497
Directors' Meeting Fees - 547,057
Licence & Taxes 18,832,228 20,909,155
Bank Charges 1,414,177 6,203,465
Annual General Meeting Expenses 528,665 874,831
Commissions 3,088,619 3,728,824
Insurance 9,148,448 18,901,813
Communication Expenses 3,875,751 4,602,991
Printing and Stationery 2,786,183 3,465,073
Advertisement and Sales Promotion 5,781,445 14,370,366
Marketing and Reservation Expenses 2,419,812 10,983,444
Training and Conference 1,986,300 2,257,586
Books and Newspaper 27,758 237,213
Membership & Subscription 988,770 1,483,483
Security Services 3,470,528 5,376,389
Uniform Expenses 1,470,925 2,320,743
Entertainment 306,302 1,708,278
Allowance for Impairment 5,000,000 5,000,000
Software Service Charges 7,529,464 6,059,644
Banquet Expenses 604,787 12,175,225
Kitchenette Expenses 1,878,942 2,639,804
Exchange Loss 573,735 -
Corporate Social Responsibility - 1,120,421
Miscellaneous 10,181,724 9,888,393
Total 97,196,849 166,142,659

Note 3.21: Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the total profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders.
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders by
weighted average number of equity shares for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. If the number
of ordinary or potential ordinary shares outstanding increases as a result of a capitalization, bonus issue or
share split, or decreases as a result of a reverse share split, the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per

share for all periods presented is adjusted retrospectively.

Calculation of basic and diluted earnings per shall has been done as stated above.

Particulars | 207778 | 207677

Basic Earnings per Share

Profit/(Loss) for the year (224,933,498 112,042,147
Number of shares 84,257,973 84,257,973
Basic Earnings per Share (Rs.) (2.67) 1.33
Diluted Earnings per Share

Profit for the year (224,933,498 112,042,147
Weighted average number of shares 84,257,973 84,257,973
Diluted Earnings per share (Rs.) (2.67) 1.33
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2078 (15 July 2021)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 3.22: Financial Instruments Classification and Fair Value Measurement

Financial Instruments are classified in accordance with Note 2.2.3.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair values are determined according
to the following hierarchy:

The Company has used fair value model for measurement of its financial assets and financial liabilities. Fair
value hierarchy levels presented represent the available inputs considered to arriving at the fair value of
category of financial assets/liabilities.

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. The Company has used its own data
(accounting value) and considered if there exists factors that would otherwise result in changes to the book
value of assets or liabilities.

Amount in Rs.

As at 31.03.2078 Carrying Amount | Level 1 | Level 2 Level 3
Financial Assets
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost
Trade and Other Receivable 241,554,279 241,554,279
Investment - -
Cash and Cash Equivalent 28,690,691 28,690,691
Total At Amortized Cost 270,244,970 270,244,970
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)
Investment 283,895,258 283,895,258
Total Financial Assets 554,140,228 - 554,140,228
Financial Liabilities
Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost
Trade and Other Payable 485,711,169 485,711,169
Loans and Borrowings 95,704,283 95,704,283
Total Financial Liabilities 581,415,452 - 581,415,452
As at 31.03.2077 Carrying Amount | Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial Assets
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost
Trade and Other Receivable 258,052,238 258,052,238
Investment 80,000,000 80,000,000
Cash and Cash Equivalent 209,915,997 209,915,997
Total At Amortized Cost 547,968,235 547,968,235
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)
Investment | 283,899,180 | 283,899,180
Total Financial Assets | 831,867,415 | - | 831,867,415
Financial Liabilities
Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost
Trade and Other Payable 444,184,005 444,184,005
Loans and Borrowings 3,824,380 3,824,380
Total Financial Liabilities 448,008,385 - 448,008,385
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
For the period ended on 31 Ashad 2078 (15 July 2021)
Notes to the Financial Statements

4 Additional Information

4.1 Share Capital
The Company has single class of equity shares having face value of Rs. 10 per share. Every member
holding equity shares therein shall have voting rights in proportion to the member’s share of the paid
up equity share capital.

4.2 Dividend
Dividend is proposed by the Board of Directors and approved by shareholders in the Annual General

Meeting.

Board of Directors have not proposed any bonus shares and cash dividend for the year 2077-78 (previous
year NIL).

Particulars Bonus Shares Cash Dividend

Proposed for 2077-78 - -
Number of shares -

Paid for 2076-77 (Amount) - -
No. of shares -

4.3 Reserves and Retained Earnings
a. Share premium
The Company had issued shares in premium on 1992-93. The amount collected by the company in
excess of its face value is credited to this account. Use of share premium shall be as provided in
Company Act 2063.

b. Other Reserves
The Company had created other reserves out of capital profits on 1995. There is no movement on
this reserve since then.

c. Retained Earning
Net profit for each year is added to this reserve. Company uses this to provide dividend to its
shareholders.

d. Fair Value Reserve
This reserve is created to account for changes in fair value of investments for those investments that
are opted to be measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income.

e. Revaluation Reserve
Revaluation Reserve was created in 1986 when the land of the company was revalued. For the first
time adoption of NFRS (1 Shrawan 2074), the revalued amount of land has been considered at
deemed cost which as allowed by NFRS 1 and accordingly, this reserve has remain intact.

4.4 Employee Benefits

a. Gratuity

Up to 19 Bhadra 2074, gratuity was in the form of defined benefit liability in which Company was
required to pay gratuity to staff considering the number of years in service and the recent salary of
the staff. Changes in Labour laws has changed the nature of gratuity and this is now a defined
contribution plan whereby Company is required to provide 8.33% of monthly basic remuneration as
gratuity to employee with effect from 19 Bhadra 2074. The Company has enrolled itself and it's
employees in Social Security Fund (SSF) in Chaitra 2076 and thereafter it has started making
contribution towards Employee Gratuity in the fund.

Particulars 2077-78 2076-77
Opening Liability 319,639,442 329,414,263
Payment Made (203,256,821) (13,011,014)
Expenses Booked 7,339,553 18,566,486

Reversal of Excess Provision - (10,570,091)
Deposited in SSF (7,339,553) -
Government Grant towards SSF for Gratuity (1,867,482) (4,760,202)
Closing Liability 114,515,139 319,639,442




4.5

Leave

Leave is classified as other long term employee liability. Liability is measured by way of actuarial
valuation for accumulated leave balance at the end of reporting periods. Changes in value of liability

is as follows:

Particulars 2077-78 2076-77
Opening Liability 120,361,383 122,289,649
Service Cost 20,230,280 3,472,909
Interest Cost 6,243,913 7,656,926
Actuarial Gain/(Loss) (34,266,709) (6,641,410)
Benefit Paid (48,602,297) (6,416,691)
Closing Liability (A) 63,966,570 120,361,383
Liability recognized in the financial statements (B) 63,966,570 120,361,383

Basic assumptions considered for measurement of leave liability related to leave are as

follows:
Particulars 2077-78 2076-77
Discount Rate 6.50% 6.43%
Rate of compensation increase 6% 6%
Average expected future service 14 13.5
Average duration of liabilities 12.5 16.5

Plan assets have not been created for funding of payment of leave liability.

Sensitivity Analysis

The following table demonstrates the impact of 1% increase in discount rate considered for

calculating the present value of long term leave liability.

Particulars 2077-78 2076-77
Effect on:
- Service Cost (2,465,544) (210,828)
- Interest Cost 960,600 1,190,810
- Leave Liability (13,610,076) (11,435,257)

The following table demonstrates the impact of 1% decrease
calculating the present value of long term leave liability.

in discount rate considered for

Particulars 2077-78 2076-77
Effect on:
- Service Cost 2,957,603 254,876
- Interest Cost (960,600) (1,191,440)
- Leave Liability 8,907,455 13,503,921
Lease

The Company has entered into a lease arrangement of premises for a period of 2-3 years. The future

minimum lease rental payment to be made is as follows:

Period 2077-78 2076-77
Up to one year 7,265,833 1,050,000
One to five years 12,343,552 1,102,500
Above five years - -
Total 19,609,385 2,152,500

The Company has entered into operating lease arrangement allowing to use some part of its assets on
lease. Minimum lease amount receivable under such lease is as follows:

Period 2077-78 2076-77
Up to one year 36,007,149 33,509,181
One to five years 228,502,545 190,894,061
Above five years 310,150,800 351,517,808
Total 574,660,494 575,921,050

The Board of Directors of the Company has decided to grant waiver for the lease payments of lessees
whose business was significantly and adversely affected by COVID-19 outbreak and subsequent

government imposed lockdown.

imited
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4.6

4.7

4.8

Corporate Social Responsibility

During the year, the Company has provided Rs. NIL million (previous year Rs. 1.12 million) (1% of net
profit after tax) as Corporate Social Responsibility as per the Section 54 (1) of the Industrial Enterprises
Act 2073.

Risk Management objectives and policies

The Company’s business activities expose to a variety of risks, namely primarily to fluctuations in foreign
currency exchange rates, liquidity and credit risk, which may adversely impact the fair value of its
financial instruments. The Company's Board and senior management has overall responsibility for the
establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management. The Company's risk management
policies are established to identify and analyses the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk
limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems
are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities.

i. Market Risk

In spite of having a very high potentiality of Tourism Sector and its related to services, it is volatile
to geopolitical and domestic incidents. With stabilization in the geopolitical and domestic issues, the
tourism sector looks for bright future. However, there is risk that any domestic/international or
geopolitical incidents would impact the business of the company. However, the company through
years of operations has sustained through such risks over the years in the past.

ii. Credit Risk
The company provides reasonable level of credit facilities to debtors and so does it enjoy credit facility
from its creditors as well. In impact on tourism sector may have impact of company debtors' ability
to pay the company within reasonable credit period allowed. Accordingly, there exist the credit risks
to that extent. The company through its experience over the many years has been managing such
risk well through proper way of close monitoring and supervising the regular recoverability position
by the management and the Board.

iii. Liquidity Risk
The Company has very less amount of debt funding and will not be impacted significantly. The
Company monitors its liquidity position on regular basis through effective planning and forecasting.

The company current assets aggregate positively against the current liabilities and accordingly, the
liquidity risk or risk that the company may not be able to settle its liabilities as they become, due
does not exist.

iv. Operational Risk

The Company has been in operation since more than 50 years and have prepared and implemented
various Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) in the form of clear cut delegation of authority for
the activities, guidelines regulations etc. Beside the company is required to also follow specific
operating guidelines issued by its franchise. Company believes that the controls implemented by the
company have minimized the operational risk to acceptably low level. The franchise also carries out
Control Self Assessment at reasonable interval where the company scored high level marks placing
it as one among better managed hotel among hotels being managed by Franchise.

v. Exchange Rate Fluctuation Risk

The Company's revenue will be impacted coming from any fluctuation of exchange rate fluctuation
so be on the certain level of supplies of the company as such exchange rate fluctuation will
contribute certain level of inflations. Since its tariffs are quoted in USD, any rate fluctuation will
have the risk of impacting the income of the company. It has been the tendency that the exchange
rate fluctuation has generally been upward movement except of occasional down turn movement as
well. The Company has practiced not to hold foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities for
substantial period so as to minimize the risk of exchange rate fluctuation.

Related Party Transactions
Related parties of the company comprises of key management personnel, organization having significant
influence on the company, subsidiaries of the company and Board of Directors.

a. Subsidiary Companies
The Company has made investment in two subsidiary companies. The Company has presence on
the Board of these two companies in proportion of its shareholding. Company provides office space
to the two subsidiaries on operating lease. Other than this, there is no any transaction with
subsidiary companies.
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Name of Subsidiary Ho{;iing i Rental Charge Ou.tstanding balance
o This Year | Last Year | This Year | Last Year
H I Soaltee Hotel Company Pvt. Ltd. 73.63
Lease Rental Income 66,667 66,667 - -
Soaltee Hospitality Ltd. 100
Lease Rental Income 66,667 66,667 - -

b. Significant Influence
Entities having significant influence over the Company is as follows:

i. Soaltee Enterprise Pvt. Ltd. (SEPL)
Soaltee Enterprise Pvt. Ltd. is major shareholder of the company. This company has four
representatives in the current Board of Soaltee Hotel Ltd. (SHL). SEPL has paid Rs. 66,667
(previous year Rs. 66,667) to SHL as operating lease rent. There is no outstanding balance at the
year end.

c. Other related entities
i. Nepal Airlines Corporation (NAC)
Nepal Airlines Corporation is institutional shareholder of the company. NAC has one
representative in the Board of SHL.
SHL provides flight catering services to the international flights of Nepal Airlines Corporation.
Transactions and outstanding balance with Nepal Airlines Corporation are as follows:

Particulars Revenue (in million) Receivable (in million)
This Year Last Year This Year Last Year
Flight Catering Services 141.96 211.79 31.21 52.77

ii. Sibkrim Holdings Pvt. Ltd.
There is no transaction of this company with SHL.

d. Those charged with Governance
Those charged with governance include the Board of Directors of the Company. The composition of
Board on the reporting date is as follows:

Name Position Representative of
Mr. Dinesh Bahadur Bista Executive Chairman Soaltee Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.
Mr. Ravi Bhakta Shrestha Director Soaltee Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.
Mr. Rajesh Kazi Shrestha Director Soaltee Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.
Mrs. Jaya Rajya Laxmi Shah Director Soaltee Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.
Mr. Ganesh Bahadur Chand Director Nepal Airlines Corporation
Mr. Prakash Bikram Khatri Director Public Shareholder
Mr. Sashi Raj Pandey Director Public Shareholder
Mr. Niranjan Kumar Tibrewala Director Public Shareholder

Mr. Lil Bahadur Khatri serves as Company Secretary of the Company.
Board members are paid Rs. 15,000 (net of withholding tax) per meeting as meeting fee for attending
each meeting of Board. Meeting fee paid to members of Board for Board as well as Other Committee
meetings during the year amounts to Rs. NIL (previous year Rs. 0.55 million).

e. Key Management Personnel

The company's key management personnel are Executive Chairman & Vice President of SHL and
General Manager of The Soaltee Kathmandu.

Total compensation to key management personnel during the year is Rs. 12.59 million (previous
year Rs. 29.68 million). The compensation paid to Executive Chairman also includes the
performance incentive paid based on the profit of the Company.

4.9 Unpaid Dividend
Total unpaid dividend amounted to Rs. 11.38 million (previous year Rs. 20.79 million).

4.10 Trade and Other Receivable

4.10.1 Civil Aviation Fee Recoverable from Airlines
Civil Aviation Fees levied on In flight catering services provided on international flights by the company
to three different airlines have been disputed and not paid by the respective airlines which amounted to
Rs 7.051 million (previous year Rs. 7.051 million ) is still pending recovery. This has been reflected under
Non-current Trade and other receivables.

4.10.2 Trade Receivable from Jet Airways
Trade receivable amounting to Rs. 16,061,418 is pending recoverable from Jet Airways as of the reporting
date which has closed its operation from 17 April 2019 and is undergoing its insolvency proceedings. In
October 2020, a revival takeover plan of potential investors has been approved by the Committee of
Creditors of Airlines. The company has already lodged the outstanding with Jet Airways & confirmed by
Jet Airways in their official website as eligible creditors. However, the outcome of the proceeding and
business revival is yet to be known.
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4.11 Lien on Company's Assets
The company current and non-current assets where applicable has been pledged hypothecated to
bankers providing the credit facilities. The credit facility as of the reporting date included term loan
against a vehicle only amounting to Rs. 94.57 million (previous year Rs. 3.82 million).

4.12 Contingent Liability
The Company recognizes contingent liability when a possible obligation arises from past events and
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the entity or company as a present obligation as a result
of past events which is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured with sufficient reliability. All adjusting events are considered for appropriate reflection in the
current financial year.

4.13 Bank Guarantee

Unexpired bank guarantee issued by the company amounted to Rs. 8.45 million (previous year Rs. 2.9
million).

4.14 Litigations or legal cases
i. Income tax Matters
Revenue Tribunal has decided in company's favour against the appeal made relating to assessment
pertaining to FY 2068-69. However, Revenue Office has filed appeal in the Honourable Supreme
Court. Decision of such appeal is still pending. The company is of the opinion that there would not
be significant obligation relating such appeal being considered at the Court.

ii. Assessment status
The Company has appealed to Revenue Tribunal challenging the disallowance of expenses on Self
Assessment Income Tax Return of the FY 2071-72 and additional demand of tax Rs. 1,837,680
made by Large Taxpayers Office. The management considers no significant obligation that would
arise that would be required to be provided for. Any tax claim will be directly charged to
accumulated profit as per its practice.

The Company has appealed to Inland Revenue Department challenging the disallowance of
expenses on Self Assessment Income Tax Return of the FY 2072-73 and additional demand of tax
Rs. 2,413,333 made by Large Taxpayers Office for administrative review. The management
considers no significant obligation that would arise that would be required to be provided for. Any
tax claim will be directly charged to accumulated profit as per its practice.

The Company has appealed to Inland Revenue Department challenging the disallowance of
expenses on Self Assessment Income Tax Return of the FY 2073-74 and additional demand of tax
Rs. 134,155 made by Large Taxpayers Office for administrative review. The management considers
no significant obligation that would arise that would be required to be provided for. Any tax claim
will be directly charged to accumulated profit as per its practice.

iii. Casino Royalty
Pursuant to the litigation case filed by the company against Government of Nepal for its demand of
Casino Royalty for the financial year 2005/06 (2062 /63) till November 2012 (24 Kartik 2069) from
the company instead of then Lessee, Nepal Recreation Centre Pvt. Ltd, the verdict was issued in
favour of the company from Honourable Supreme Court of Nepal. Accordingly, the management
considers that no further obligation arises under such demand by the GON for such Royalty and
no provisions for the additional claim has been made.

iv: Arbitration
The company has filed a writ petition in the Supreme Court of Nepal challenging the judgement of
Honourable High Court, Patan for the appointment of arbitrator in a case filed by the Nepal
Recreation Centre Pvt Ltd. for the appointment of arbitrators pursuant to the Casino Lease
Agreement. The matter is sub-judice before the Honourable Supreme Court. Another case is
pending in the Honourable High Court, Patan in pursuant to appointment of Arbitrator.

v. Legal cases
The company has filed a few cases for recovery of dues from some debtors in the course of its
regular business.

4.15 Capital Commitment
Capital contract remaining to be executed on capital accounts net of advances to Rs. 18.07 million
(Previous year Rs. 2.62 million).

4.16 Letter of Credit
There is no outstanding letter of credit as at the reporting date.

4.17 Housing Fund
This fund was created as per the requirement of erstwhile Labour laws. Owing to changes in Labour law,

this fund is no longer required and no provision has been made. The Company has not paid during the
year out of this fund to a separate entity called Employee Housing.
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4.18 Operating Segment
Management of the company has considered the total operation to be segregable into three operating
segment based on the nature of operation and services rendered.

i. Core hotel business: The operation of hotel that includes sale of rooms, food, related recreational
facilities etc. that is directly linked to operation of hotel is considered as major segment.

ii. Flight catering: The Flight Catering Division provides flight catering services to airlines. This is
different nature to the core operating nature of the company, which is operation of hotel and related
facilities to meet its standards.

iii. Horizon Lounge: Horizon Lounge Unit provides airport lounge services to the travelers at Tribhuwan
International Airport (TIA).

The financial information about the identified segments are as follows: (Amount in millions)
Operating Segment Operation | Catering | Lounge| T°%!
Revenue

- Food 88.08 260.13 2.09 350.30
- Room 57.43 57.43
- Beverage 9.04 0.80 0.62 10.46
- Others 2.02 0.02 2.04
Interest Income 2.30 2.30
Other Income 31.41 31.41
Total Revenue 190.28 260.93 2.73 453.93
Expenses*
Consumption Cost 35.22 88.23 0.44 123.89
Employee Benefit Expenses 168.01 45.19 0.78 213.98
Management, Operating and Other Expenses 99.82 92.06 2.67 194.55
Depreciation and Amortization 89.39 4.40 0.20 94.00
Finance Cost 2.87 2.87
Total Expenses 395.32 229.88 4.09 629.29
Segment Result (205.04) 31.05 (1.36) (175.36)
Income Tax 49.57
Profit/(Loss) for the Period (224.93)
Segment Assets 2,052.31 121.72 21.82 | 2,195.85
Segment Liabilities** 2,195.85

*  Directly associated and identifiable segment cost has been reported on actual basis while
common segment costs are allocated based on ratio of segment revenue.

**  Segment wise liabilities have not been prepared due to absence internal reporting system of
segment liability.

4.19 Government Grant towards Social Security Fund (SSF)

The Government of Nepal (GoN) announced that it would contribute 31% of the basic salary to Social
Security Fund (SSF) on behalf of the registered contributors (20% employer’s contribution and 11%
employees) as a relief to employers and employees impacted during the countrywide lockdown period
due to COVID-19. The Company started contributing to SSF after its enrolment in Chaitra 2076 and
qualifies for the Grant related to Income. Accordingly, the Company has recognized such contributions
of Rs. 4.84 million in employee’s SSF for the month Jestha and Ashad 2078 as Government Grant and
recognized the corresponding amount as employee cost in the financial statements.

4.20 Capital Management

Capital includes issued capital and all other reserves attributable to the equity holders of the company.
The Company manages its capital so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to
optimize returns to the shareholders. The capital structure of the company is based on management’s
judgement of the appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its strategic needs. We consider
the amount of capital in proportion to risk and manage the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.

The Company’s aim is to translate profitable growth to superior cash generation through efficient capital
management. The Company's policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on
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total equity so as to maintain investor, creditor, and market confidence and to sustain future
development and growth of its business. The Company's focus is on keeping strong total equity base to
ensure independence, security, as well as a high financial flexibility for potential future borrowings, if
required, without impacting the risk profile of the Company. The Company's will take appropriate steps
in order to maintain, or if necessary adjust, its capital structure. The management monitors the return
on capital as well as the level of dividends to shareholders. The Company’s goal is to continue to be able
to return excess liquidity to shareholders by continuing to distribute dividends in future periods.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during all the years
reported in this financial statement.

4.21 Going Concern

Impact of COVID-19

The Company faces significant uncertainties due to COVID-19 which have impacted the operations of
the Company adversely starting from the start of the fiscal year. Management has assessed the impact
of existing and anticipated effects of COVID-19 on the future cash flow projections and has prepared a
range of scenarios to estimate possible financing requirements. Nonetheless, management is confident
of its ability to generate cash inflows from operations and also raise long term funds to meet its
obligations on due date.

Also refer note 2.1.3 (e) Estimation uncertainty relating to the global health pandemic on COVID-19.
Based on aforesaid assessment, management believes that as per estimates made conservatively, the
Company will continue as a going concern and will be able to discharge its liabilities and realise the
carrying amount of its assets as on 15 July 2021.

4.22 Regrouping and Round off

Figures have been regrouped and rearranged and rounded off to nearest rupee. Insignificant rounding
off differences may exist.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
to the Shareholders of
Soaltee Hotel Limited (Group)

Opinion:

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Soaltee Hotel Limited and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”), which comprise of Statement of Financial Position as at Ashad 31,
2078 (July 15, 2021), Statement of Profit or Loss, Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of
Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
consolidated financial statements, read together with significant accounting policies and notes to the
accounts forming part of the accounts, present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Group as on Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021), its financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRSs).

Basis of Opinion:

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs), issued by the Auditing
Standard Board of Nepal.. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the "Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements" section of our report. We are independent of The
Group in accordance with the ICAN's Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (Code of
Ethics) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidences we have obtained are sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter:

The effect of COVID-19 pandemic is visible from the incurred losses by the Group during the current year.
However, the management has assessed the impact from such uncertainties on its financial performance
which has been mentioned in Note 2.1.3 (e) & 4.21. We do not modify our opinion in this regard.

Key Audit Matters:

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the financial statements of the current period. Based on the circumstances and facts of the audit, we
consider following as key audit matters:

S.N. Details of Key Audit Matters How the matters were addressed in our audit
1 Revenue Recognition
(Refer Note 2.2.16 "Revenue" and Note 3.15 of the financial statements)

Revenue from sale of service (hereinafter | Our audit procedures included the following:

referred to as "Revenue") is recognized at the | ,  Agsessed  the appropriateness  of  the
time of delivery of services and it is probable Company's revenue recognition accounting

that the future economic benefits will flow to policies in line with NAS 18 (Revenue) and
the Company and that revenue and associated testing the accounting of revenue in books of
costs incurred or to be incurred can be reliably accounts thereof.

measured and no any performance obligation
is pending with respect to revenue recognized.

3\ 5\
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S.N.

Details of Key Audit Matters

How the matters were addressed in our audit

Revenue is key driver of the business and
recorded in complex |IT system and
environment. Likewise, revenue also includes
high number of individual and low value
transaction therefore in respect of services
provided there is risk that revenue is recorded
inappropriately relative to the provision of the
underlying service.

Therefore, due to significant risk embedded in
revenue we have identified revenue

Evaluated the integrity of the Company's
general information and technology control
environment and tested the operating
effectiveness of IT application controls over
revenue recognition, the detailed process flow
of sales, segregation of duties for the process
followed, automated steps and manually
intervened processes.

Performed detailed analysis of Revenue,
analytical testing with sales information filed

recognition as a Key Audit Matter for the

with tax authorities, testing the timing of its
current period.

recognition and accuracy of the amounts
recognized and verification of the supporting
information of the Revenue transactions.

e Tested a sample of revenue transactions in
relation to the provision of services room sales
and assessing them against relevant
supporting documentation/sales contracts to
determine income has been appropriately
recognized.

2 Properly, Plant and Equipment and Investment Property
(refer Note 2.2.6, 2.2.8, 3.1 and 3.3 of the Financial Statements)

There are areas where management | We assessed the controls in place over the fixed
judgement impacts the carrying value of | asset, evaluated the appropriateness of
property, plant and equipment and investment | capitalization process, performed tests on costs
property and their respective depreciation or | capitalized, the timeliness of the capitalization of
amortization rates. These include the decision | the assets and the derecognition criteria for assets
to capitalize or expense the costs, the annual | retired from active use. In performing these
asset life review: the timeliness of the | procedures, we reviewed the judgments made by
capitalization of assets and the use of | the management including the nature of underlying
management assumptions and estimates for | costs capitalized, impairment, determination of
the determination or the measurement and | realizable value of the assets retired from the
recognition criteria for assets retired from | active use, the appropriateness of useful life of
active use. Due to the materiality in the context | assets. We have observed that the management
of the balance sheet of the company and the | has regularly reviewed the aforesaid judgements
level of judgment and estimates required, we | and there are no material misstatement of
consider this to be a Key Audit Matter. impairment and capitalization of assets

Other Information:

The management of Group are responsible for the other information such as "Report of Board
of Director's/Chairman's Statement" to be presented in the Annual Report and Accounts. Our opinion on the
consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express
any audit opinion or, except as explicitly stated above, any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on audit work done
by us on consolidated financial statement, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with
the consolidated Financial Statements. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements:

The Group’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of
these consolidated financial statements in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records for safeguarding the assets of the
Entity and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that are operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the consolidated financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statement, the respective management and Board of Directors are
responsible for assessing the Entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Nepal Standards
on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial information.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of consolidated financial statement, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. We are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Group has adequate internal financial controls in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors'
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statement,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statement represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be considered to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters.

We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. .

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provnde a reasonable \@\
basis for our audit opinion. e i

Member Crowe Global
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Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information of two subsidiaries, "HI Soaltee
Hotel Company Pvt. Ltd. and Soaltee Hospitality Ltd." whose financial statements reflect total assets of
Rs.293.59 million and net assets of Rs.293.25 million as at July 15, 2021 and net profit of Rs.1.19 million and
net cash inflows amounting to Rs.0.72 million for the year then ended. These financial statements and other
financial information have been audited by other auditors who have expressed an unmodified opinion on
those statements. Those reports have been furnished to us by the management, and our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements in so far as it relates to the accounts and disclosures included in respect of
these subsidiaries, are based solely on the report of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work
done.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
On the basis of our examination, we would like to further report that:

i) We have obtained information and explanations, which, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

i) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Group so far
as appears from our examination of such books;

iii) In our opinion, the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, Consolidated Statement of
Profit or Loss, Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows and Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity attached thereto,
for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of Significant Accounting Policies and other Explanatory Notes & information dealt
with by this report are in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2006 and are in
agreement with the books of account maintained by the Group;

iv) In our opinion, so far as appeared from our examination of the books, the business of the
Group has been conducted satisfactorily; and

V) To the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and from our
examination of the books of accounts of the Group necessary for the purposes of the audit, we
have not come across cases where the Board of Directors or any employees of the Group
have acted contrary to legal provisions relating to accounts, or committed any misappropriation
or caused loss or damage to the Group or committed any accounting fraud in the Group.

)

B.K. Agrawal, FCA

Managing Partner
Kathmandu For: B.K. Agrawal & Co.
Date: 8" October, 2021 Chartered Accountants

UDIN: 211011CA00018o0MDMy

Member Crowe Global
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
For the period ended on 31 Ashad 2078 (15 July 2021)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. General Information
Soaltee Hotel Limited (the Company or SHL) is a limited liability company registered with
Office of Company Registrar as per erstwhile Company Act. Its shares are enlisted with
Security Board of Nepal (SEBON) and listed and traded at Nepal Stock Exchange Ltd.
(NEPSE). The registered office of the Company and the principal place of business is located
at Tahachal, Kathmandu, Nepal. Since its incorporation more than 50 years, SHL has been
catering the Tourism sector services with five-star quality hotel facilities from the date of
commercial operation. SHL has invested in two subsidiaries namely H I Soaltee Hotel
Company Pvt. Ltd. and Soaltee Hospitality Ltd. for expanding its hotel business. Through
Soaltee Hospitality Ltd., wholly owned subsidiary, it has also invested in Soaltee Sibkrim
Hotels and Resorts Pvt. Ltd. with 24% share in the company.
SHL owns and operates a deluxe luxurious property classified under Five Star category by
the Government of Nepal with business name and brand "The Soaltee Kathmandu" hotel at
Tahachal, Kathmandu Metropolitan City ward No 13, Kathmandu, Nepal. Previously, this
property (hotel) was managed and operated with the name and brand of The Soaltee
Crowne Plaza Kathmandu by Holiday Inns (China) Limited, a subsidiary company of
Intercontinental Hotels Group (IHG) under the Hotel Management Agreement which had
been expired and discontinued with effect from 15th May 2021 on its expiration date.
Thereafter, the property (hotel) has been rebranded as The Soaltee Kathmandu and
managed and operated by the SHL. The Soaltee Kathmandu has 282 saleable rooms
ranging from Deluxe, Club to Suites. Further, the Company also owns and operates The
Soaltee Gate Gourmet (previously known as LSG Sky Chef under the Technical Assistance
Agreement which was on 11th July 2021) an Inflight Catering Division under a Technical
Assistance Agreement with Gate Gourmet Singapore Pte. Limited, Singapore.
The consolidated financial statements is prepared by consolidating the financial statements
of Soaltee Hotel Limited (the Parent or SHL), H I Soaltee Hotel Company Pvt. Ltd.
(Subsidiary with 72.63% holding) and Soaltee Hospitality Ltd. (100% Subsidiary),
collectively stated as “the Group” hereinafter. The Group’s principal activity is to invest in
hotel industry. The Group has invested hotels in Kathmandu and Nepalgunj.
The Consolidated Financial Statements were authorized for issue by the meeting of the
Board of Directors on 08 October 2021 (22 Ashwin 2078) and has recommended for
approval by shareholders in the Annual General Meeting.

2. Significant Accounting Policies
2.1. Basis of Preparation

2.1.1. Statement of Compliance
The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards (NFRS) as issued by Accounting Standard Board Nepal and
pronounced by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal.

2.1.2. Basis of Measurement

These consolidated financial statements are prepared under historical cost convention

except for the following material items:

- Investment in shares of entities other than subsidiaries, which have been measured
at fair value

- Staff loans provided at subsidized interest rate, which have been measured at
amortized cost.

- Other long-term liabilities (leave liability), which has been measured at present value
of the obligation
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2.1.3. Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards (NFRS) requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and
judgments. It also requires management to exercise judgment in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The Group makes certain estimates and assumptions regarding the
future events. Estimates and judgments are continuously evaluated based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances. In the future, actual result may differ from these estimates and assumptions.
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are:

a) Useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment
Management of each company reviews the useful life and residual values of property,
plant and equipment in each year. Such life are dependent upon an assessment of both
the technical life of the assets and also their likely economic life, based on various
internal and external factors including relative efficiency and operating costs.

b) Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its
property, plant and equipment to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any). Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. Value in use is usually determined on the basis of discounted estimated future
cash flows. This involves management estimates on anticipated commodity prices,
market demand and supply, economic and regulatory environment, discount rates and
other factors. Any subsequent changes to cash flow due to changes in the above
mentioned factors could impact on the carrying value of assets.

c) Recognition of deferred tax

Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and the level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. The Group based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements
were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments,
however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the
control of the Group.

Deferred tax is calculated on temporary differences using a known future tax rate.

Deferred tax assets are recognized in respect of all temporary differences giving rise to
deferred tax assets where the management believes it is probable that these assets will
be recovered.

d) Other long term employee benefits
Significant judgment is required to determine the estimated liability that shall arise on
part of unused/accumulated leave by the staff and which is generally paid out on
retirement or termination of employment. Valuation of such is done by qualified
actuary using assumption like interest rate, rate of increase in annual compensation,
remaining service period etc. Factors considered may change depending on market
changes or legal changes which are beyond the control of the Group.

e) Estimation uncertainty due to COVID-19
On 11 March 2020, the World Health Organization declared Covid-19 outbreak as a
pandemic. Responding to the potentially serious threat that this pandemic has to
public health, The Nepal Government has taken a series of measures to contain the
outbreak, which included imposing multiple ‘lock-downs’ across the country, from 24
March 2020, and the operations restriction was applicable to the hotels 21 July 2020.
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In current fiscal year 2020/21, while the impact of the Covid-19 continues to the
tourism sector, specially hospitality sector performance has been sluggish.
Furthermore, the lockdown to contain the out-break of second wave of Covid-19 was
again announced by the Government of Nepal from 26th April 2021 which continued
until 8th July 2021.

The lockdowns and restrictions imposed on various activities due to COVID - 19
pandemics have posed challenges to all the businesses of the Group. Lockdown
guidelines mandated closure of hotel operations and cessation of air traffic and other
forms of public transport. This has resulted in low occupancies / shutdowns of hotel.
The hotel was majorly shut down entirely during the lockdown phase as expect for very
limited operation of flight catering and operation few of isolation rooms. With the lifting
of the partial lockdown restrictions, the hotel has started re-opening after establishing
thorough and well-rehearsed safety protocols. The hotel expects the demand for its
services to pick up albeit at a slower pace after lockdown was lifted and recovery in
business to be driven by domestic leisure tourism, vacations, domestic business travel
and limited international travel.

The Group has assessed the potential impact of Covid-19 on its capital and financial
resources, profitability, liquidity position, prospect possible alternatives for financing
arrangements, supply chain and demand for its services. The Group stands at
comfortable liquidity position to meet its commitments for the year ended 15 July
2020. The Group does not foresee any disruption in materials supplies for the hotel
operations.

The Group has also assessed the potential impact of Covid-19 on the carrying value of
property, plant & equipment, intangible assets, investments, trade receivables,
inventories, and other current assets appearing in the financial statements of the
Group. In developing the assumptions and estimates relating to the future
uncertainties in the economic conditions because of this pandemic, the Group as at the
date of approval of these Financial statements has used internal and external sources
of information and based on current estimates, expects to recover the carrying amounts
of these assets.

The impact of the global health pandemic may be different from that estimated as at
the date of approval of these financial statements and the Group will continue to
closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.

2.1.4. Functional and Presentation Currency
The financial statements are prepared in Nepalese Rupees (Rs.), which is also the Group’s
functional currency.

2.2, Accounting Policies
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements are set out below. The policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated. The preparation of financial statements requires the
use of certain accounting estimates. The areas where significant judgments and estimates
have been made in preparing the financial statements and their effects are disclosed in
relevant areas.

2.2.1. Basis of Consolidation
Where the Group has the power, either directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and
operating policies of another entity or business so as to obtain benefits from its activities, it
is classified as a subsidiary. The consolidated financial statements present the results of
the Group and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) as if they formed a single entity.

Consolidation of financial statements of subsidiaries has been done in line with NFRS 10:
Consolidated Financial Statements. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
financial statements are combined line by line by adding the like items of assets, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its subsidiaries. The carrying
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amount of the parent’s investment in subsidiary and the parent’s portion of equity of
subsidiary are eliminated. All intra group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the group are eliminated in
preparation of the consolidated financial statements. SHL has opted for carve out
alternative accounting treatment issued by ICAN relation to use uniform accounting
policies for like transactions in consolidation of financial statement. Under the carve out
alternative treatment, the investment made in associate by SHL’s fully owned subsidiary is
measured at cost instead of measuring it using equity method.

Associates

Profits or losses arising on transactions between the Group and its associates are
recognized only to the extent of unrelated investors' interests in the associate. The
investor's share in the associate's profits and losses resulting from these transactions is
eliminated against the carrying value of the associate.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of the Group's share of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalized and included
in the carrying amount of the associate. Where there is objective evidence that the
investment in an associate has been impaired the carrying amount of the investment is
tested for impairment in the same way as other non-financial assets.

Investment in associates of the subsidiaries are recorded at cost in line with the carve out
issued by ICAN for alternative accounting treatment as described in note 2.2.1.

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

ii.

Recognition

The Group initially recognizes financial assets on trade date which is the date on which
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus, or an item
not at fair value through profit or loss, transactions costs that are directly attributable
to its acquisition or issue.

Classification and Measurement

Financial Assets

The classification and measurement of financial assets depend on how these are
managed (the entity’s business model) and their contractual cash-flows characteristics.
These factors determine whether the financial assets are measured at amortized cost,
fair value through other comprehensive income (‘FVOCI’) or fair value through profit or
loss (‘FVPL)).

— At amortized cost:
Financial assets at amortized cost are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments for which the Group has intent and ability to hold till
maturity. They are initially recognized at fair value plus any directly attributable
transaction cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, such financial assets are
measured at amortized cost using effective interest rate method less any
impairment losses.

— At fair value through profit or loss:
Financial assets are classified at fair value through profit or loss if the Group
manages such instruments and makes purchases and sales decisions based on its
fair value. Attributable transaction costs and changes in fair value are taken to
revenue.

— At fair value through other comprehensive income:
Financial assets at FVOCI are non-derivative financial assets that are not classified
in any of the above category. Financial assets at FVOCI are recognized initially at
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fair value plus any directly attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to initial
recognition, financial assets are measured at fair value, as far as such fair value is
available, and changes therein, which are recognized in other comprehensive
income and presented in the fair value reserve in equity. When an investment is
derecognized, gain or loss accumulated in equity is reclassified to retained
earnings.

Financial Liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognized initially on the trade date, which is the date that
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Subsequent
to initial recognition, these financial liabilities are measured at amortized costs using
effective interest rate method.

e
=+
=4
.

Derecognition

Financial Assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flow
from the financial assets expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash
flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risk and rewards of the ownership
of the financial assets are transferred or in which the Group neither transfer nor retains
substantially all of the risk and rewards of the ownership and it does not retain control of
the financial assets.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the
assets (or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the assets derecognized) and
the sum of (i) the consideration received (including any new assets obtained less any new
liability assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in Other
Comprehensive Income (OCI) is recognized in retained earnings.

Financial Liabilities
The Group derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged or cancelled or expired.

iv. Offsetting
The financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the
statement of financial position when and only when, the Group has a legal right to set off
the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

v. Amortized cost measurement
The 'amortized cost' of a financial asset and financial liability is the amount at which the
financial asset or financial liability is measured at initial recognition, minus principal
repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest method
of any difference between initial amount recognized and the maturity amount minus any
reduction for impairment.

vi. Fair value measurement
Fair value of a financial instrument is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged,
or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties at an arm’s length transaction.
Quoted market values represent fair value when a financial instrument is traded in an
organized and liquid market. Where quoted market values are not available, fair values are
estimated by other techniques.

vii. Identification and measurement of impairment

Financial assets

At each reporting date the Group assesses the objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired or not. A financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
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the asset and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the

financial assets or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor

—  breach of contract, such as default or delinquency by a debtor

— observable data relating to a group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment
status of debtor

The amount of loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and

amount the management considers it as recoverable on the basis of financial position of the

party and appropriate estimation made by the management. Receivables considered as less

likely to be received are provided allowance for loss and charged to Statement of Profit or

Loss.

In addition, for an investment in an unquoted equity security, a significant or prolonged

decline in its net worth is objective evidence of impairment.

Impairment losses are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss and reflected in an
allowance account against debtors. Impairment losses on equity investment are routed
through Statement of OCI. Interest on the impaired assets continues to be recognized
through the unwinding of the discount. If an event occurring after the impairment was
recognized causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, then the decrease in
impairment loss is reversed through income statement (OCI in case of available for sale
investment).

If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of an equity investments increases and the
increase can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognized, then the impairing loss is reversed through profit or loss; otherwise, any
increase in fair value is recognized through OCI.

2.2.4 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

Non-financial assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognized for the amount by which the assets carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost
and value in use. An impairment loss is recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.
Provisions against impairment are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect
the current best estimates. Impairment charges are included in profit or loss except to the
extent they reverse gains previously recognized in Other Comprehensive Income.

2.2.5 Foreign Currency
Transactions entered into by the Group entities in a currency other than the currency of
the primary economic environment in which they operate (the "functional currency" is Rs.)
are recorded at the rates ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary
assets and liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the reporting date. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of unsettled monetary assets and liabilities are
recognized immediately in profit or loss.

2.2.6 Property, Plant and Equipment
Items of property, plant and equipment are initially recognized at cost. Cost includes the
purchase price and other directly attributable costs as well as the estimated present value
of any future unavoidable costs of dismantling and removing items. The corresponding
liability is recognized within provisions. Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow in to the
Group. Ongoing repair and maintenance are expensed as incurred.

The Group identifies and determines cost of each component/ part of the asset separately,
if the component/ part has cost which is significant to the total cost of the asset having
useful life that is materially different from that of the remaining asset. These components
are depreciated over their useful lives; the remaining asset is depreciated over the life of the
principal asset.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted prospectively.
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An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is
derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use
or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

Capital Work in Progress

Assets in the course of construction are capitalized in the assets under capital work in
progress (CWIP). At the point when an asset is operating at management’s intended use,
the cost of construction is transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment and depreciation commences.

Salvage Value
The Group has assessed the salvage value of all its property, plant and equipment to be 5%
of its original cost.

Depreciation

Freehold land is not depreciated. Depreciation on assets under construction does not
commence until they are complete and available for use. Depreciation is provided on all
other items of property, plant and equipment so as to write-off their carrying value over the
expected useful economic lives.

Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on Straight Line Method over their
useful life.

Management of the Group has assessed useful life of the following category of assets as

mentioned.

Category of Assets Estimated useful life
Building 35 - 70 years

Other civil structures 20 - 35 years

Plant and machinery 10 - 30 years

Vehicle 10 - 20 years
Computer and accessories 7 years

Office Equipment 10 years

Furniture, fixture and furnishing 10 years

Leasehold Development 3 years

2.2.7 Intangible Assets
Computer Software
Purchased computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to
acquire and bring to use the software. These costs are amortized over the estimated useful
lives.

2.2.8 Investment Property
The Group holds certain assets (land and building) for purpose other than its core
operating function. Such assets are classified as investment property.

Items of investment property are initially recognized at cost. Cost includes the purchase
price and other directly attributable costs as well as the estimated present value of any
future unavoidable costs of dismantling and removing items. The corresponding liability is
recognized within provisions. Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow in to the
Group. Ongoing repair and maintenance are expensed as incurred.

When an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment property following
a change in its use, any difference arising at the date of transfer between the carrying
amount of the item and its fair value is recognized directly in equity if it is a gain. Upon
disposal of the item, the gain is transferred to retained earnings. Any loss is recognized in
statement of profit or loss.
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Incomes arising from use of investment property by third parties are recognized as lease
income from operating lease. The lease rental is adjusted for inflation rate periodically and
the same amount is booked as operating lease income, which the Group believes is more
representative than the straight line method, in line with para 50 of NAS 17: Leases.

Salvage Value
Group has assessed the salvage value of its depreciable investment property to be 5% of its
original cost.

Depreciation

Land that form part of investment property is not depreciated. Depreciation is provided on
other items of investment property so as to write-off their carrying value over the expected
useful economic lives.

Depreciable investment properties are depreciated on Straight Line Method over their
useful life. Management considered the useful life of investment property to be of 55 years.

2.2.9 Investments
Investments in shares of the companies are classified as either at amortized cost or at fair
value. The classification of investment and its subsequent measurement is dependent on
the business model for managing such investments and contractual cash flow
characteristics.
Investments are measured at fair value unless measured at amortized cost. Investments are
measured at amortized cost if such investment is held with in order to collect contractual
cash flows and contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.
Subsequent changes in the investments measured at amortized cost are charged to Profit or
Loss. Investments measured at fair value opting the routing through Other Comprehensive
Income, at initial recognition, for adjusting the changes in fair value are charged through
Other Comprehensive Income that forms part of the equity of the Company. Changes in fair
value of other investments are charged to Profit or Loss.

2.2.10 Inventories

Stock of food, beverages, store and operating supplies are initially recognized at cost and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Net realizable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the variable selling
expenses.

The cost is determined on weighted average method and includes expenditure incurred
directly in acquiring the inventories and bringing them to their present location and
condition.

2.2.11 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash balances, call deposits and other short term
highly liquid investments. For the purpose, any cash placement deposits, call deposit or
other highly liquid items with the maturity period of 90 days from the date of transaction is
considered as cash equivalent.

2.2.12 Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are stated at transaction value less allowance for impairment.
Staff loan are measured at amortized cost. Discounting rate has been arrived by
considering comparable market rates of similar types of loan. Difference of amortized value
and book value of loan is charged to profit or loss for the period of staff loan.
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2.2.13 Share capital
Financial instruments issued by the Group are classified as equity only to the extent that
they do not meet the definition of a financial liability or financial asset. The Group’s equity
shares are classified as equity instruments.

2.2.14 Employee Benefits
Employee benefits are either defined benefit plan or defined contribution plan. Employee
benefits of SHL comprise of gratuity, provident fund and accumulated leave. These benefits
are provided as per the Employee Service Manual and Collective Bargaining Agreement
between Employee Union and the Company.

Provident Fund-Defined Contribution Plan

SHL pays pre-defined Provident Fund benefit to Social Security Fund (SSF) (prior to Chaitra
2076 provident fund were contributed to employee provident fund) and SHL does not have
any legal or constructive obligation to pay additional amount in future. Contributions to
Provident fund are charged to the statement of profit or loss in the year to which they
relate.

Gratuity-Defined Contribution Plan

SHL is required to pay pre-defined amount to Social Security Fund as gratuity to
employees. SHL accrues 8.33% of basic salary of staff as gratuity benefits in accordance
with the Labor Law of Nepal till Falgun 2076 while SHL has deposited Employee Gratuity in
SSF from Chaitra 2076. The amount presented in financial statements is the actual liability
of gratuity at each reporting date.

Short term and long-term employment benefits

A liability is recognized for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries,
annual leave and sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.
Liabilities recognized in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related
service.

Accumulated leaves, encashment of which are not expected to occur within twelve months
after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related services are
recognized as a liability at the present value of the obligation as at the reporting date
determined based on an actuarial valuation.

2.2.15 Income Tax

Deferred Tax

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilized. The carrying amount of
deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax
provided is based on the expected realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets
and liabilities using tax rates that are expected to apply in subsequent periods.

Current Tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year using tax rates
at the reporting date and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.
Current tax is calculated reasonably in accordance with the provisions of Income Tax Act
as per management assumption and best judgment.
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General corporate tax rate is 25%. SHL is entitled to a rebate of 15% on the General tax
rate as per the provisions of Income Tax Act 2058. Additionally, for FY 2077/78, the
Finance Act 2078 has declared Corporate tax rate is only 1% on tax liability to hotel
business affected by COVID-19. Accordingly, tax rate applicable to the company for current
fiscal year is 1% (previous year rate was 17%).

2.2.16 Revenue
Revenue is recognized only when it is probable that the future economic benefits will flow to
the group and that revenue and associated costs incurred or to be incurred can be reliably
measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable
net of Value Added Taxes, Civil Aviation Fee and Service Charges where applicable.

Revenue from Sale of Services

Revenue is recognized at the time of delivery of services and is stated net of Value Added
Tax (VAT) and Service Charges. Revenue from LSG Sky Chef -Flight Catering Unit sales is
stated net of Civil Aviation Fee & Service charge.

Revenue from package sales is disclosed net of credits and refunds, included as part of the
package.

Service Charge

Income from service charges is recognized on accrual basis net of contribution to be made
to the Hotel Association Nepal (HAN) and the Employees as per Labor Rules as per the
previous agreement between HAN and representatives of the Employees Union.

Dividend
Dividend income from investment in shares is recognized when the right to receive the
payment is established.

Other Income

Other income are recognized on accrual basis when there are reasonable basis to ascertain
the amount and there is reasonable basis for recoverability except for certain membership
fees which are insignificant to the total revenue.

2.2.17 Expenses
Expenses are accounted on accrual basis where there are reasonable basis to estimate
ascertain the obligation and rationality of such obligation.

Management Fee

Management fee payable to Holiday Inns (China) Limited for hotel operation is based on
fixed percentage of the adjusted Gross Revenue and Gross Operating Profit as specified in
the Hotel Management Agreement.

License Fee

License fees payable in relation to technical assistance to LSG Catering Hong Kong Limited,
to operate the Flight Catering Unit under the brand name of LSG Sky Chefs’ is based on a
fixed percentage of the Net Sales Value as specified in the Technical Assistance Agreement.

Employee Bonus
Employee bonus is provided in line with the provisions of Bonus Act 2030 BS.

2.2.18 Lease
The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the
substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or
contains, a lease if fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific
asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that
right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. For
arrangements entered into prior to 1 Shrawan 2074 the group has determined whether the
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arrangement contain lease on the basis of facts and circumstances existing on the date of
transition.

SHL has entered into operating lease arrangement for use of property at LSG Flight
Kitchen. The lease rental is adjusted for inflation rate periodically and the same amount is
booked as operating lease expenses, which the Group believes is more representative than
the straight line method, in line with para 33 of NAS 17: Leases.

Group has entered into operating lease arrangement allowing to use its facilities and
infrastructures to third parties. The lease rental is adjusted for inflation rate periodically
and the same amount is booked as operating lease income, which the Company believes is
more representative than the straight line method, in line with para 50 of NAS 17: Leases.

Provisions
The Group applies NAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets in
accounting for non-financial liabilities.

Provisions are recognized for present obligations arising as consequences of past events
where it is more likely than not that a transfer of economic benefit will be necessary to
settle the obligation, which can be reliably estimated. Provision is made for the anticipated
costs when an obligation exists.

Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in statement of financial position based on
current/non-current classification. Based on the nature of products and the time between
acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the
Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current/non-
current classification of assets and liabilities.

The Group classifies an asset as current when it is:

- Expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

The Group classifies a liability as current when:

e Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

e Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

e Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Segment Reporting

The Group’s segmental reporting is in accordance with NFRS 8 Operating Segments.
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the Company's management of the Group, which is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments. All transactions between
business segments are conducted on an arm's length basis, with intra-segment revenue
and costs being eliminated centrally. Income and expenses directly associated with each
segment are included in determining business segment performance.
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2.2.22 Government Grant
Government grants, including non-monetary grants at fair value, is recognized when there
is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to grant
and the grants will be received. Government grants is recognized in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group recognizes as expenses the related
costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

2.2.23 Operating Cycle
The Company considers its operating cycle to be of 12 months.
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2078 (15 July 2021)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3.2: Intangible Assets

Amount in Rs.

Particulars Software Total
Cost
Balance at 01.04.2076 13,051,443 13,051,443
Addition 1,886,211 1,886,211
Disposal/Transfer - -
Balance at 31.03.2077 14,937,654 14,937,654
Addition - -
Disposal - -
Balance at 31.03.2078 14,937,654 14,937,654
Amortization
Balance at 01.04.2076 12,124,124 12,124,124
Charge for the year 778,791 778,791
Disposal - -
Balance at 31.03.2077 12,902,915 12,902,915
Charge for the year 828,401 828,401
Disposal - -
Balance at 31.03.2078 13,731,316 13,731,316
Net Book Value
At 01.04.2076 927,319 927,319
At 31.03.2077 2,034,739 2,034,739
At 31.03.2078 1,206,338 1,206,338

Note 3.3: Investment Property

Amount in Rs.

Particulars Freehold Land Building Total
Cost
Balance at 01.04.2076 4,707,287 166,146,812 170,854,100
Addition - - -
Disposal/Transfer - - -
Balance at 31.03.2077 4,707,287 166,146,812 170,854,100
Addition - - -
Disposal - - -
Balance at 31.03.2078 4,707,287 166,146,812 170,854,100
Amortization
Balance at 01.04.2076 - 75,740,113 75,740,113
Charge for the year - 1,979,123 1,979,123
Disposal - - -
Balance at 31.03.2077 - 77,719,236 77,719,236
Charge for the year - 1,979,123 1,979,123
Disposal - - -
Balance at 31.03.2078 - 79,698,359 79,698,359
Net Book Value
At 01.04.2076 4,707,287 90,406,699 95,113,987
At 31.03.2077 4,707,287 88,427,576 93,134,864
At 31.03.2078 4,707,287 86,448,453 91,155,741
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2078 (15 July 2021)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3.4: Deferred Tax Assets
Deferred tax is calculated on temporary differences using known future tax rate. Deferred tax assets are
recognized in respect of all temporary differences giving rise to deferred tax assets where the management
believes it is probable that these assets will be recovered.

Amount in Rs.

imited

* *

A Credit/(Charge) | Credit/(Charge)
Particulars 01.04.2077 to SOPL to OCI 31.03.2078
Fixed Assets (36,276,929 (9,352,796) - (45,629,725)
Gratuity Provision 53,629,411 (29,294,944) - 24,334,467
Provision for Leave 25,576,794 (11,983,898) - 13,592,896
Trade and Other Receivable 7,781,178 1,062,500 - 8,843,678
Total 50,710,454 (49,569,138) - 1,141,316
. Credit/(Charge) | Credit/(Charge)
Particulars 01.04.2076 to SOPL to OCI 31.03.2077
Fixed Assets (23,966,045) (12,310,884) - (36,276,929)
Gratuity Provision 55,664,769 (2,035,358) - 53,629,411
Provision for Leave 24,270,980 1,305,814 - 25,576,794
Trade and Other Receivable 6,718,678 1,062,500 - 7,781,178
Total 62,688,382 (11,977,928) - 50,710,454
Note 3.5: Investments
Amount in Rs.
Particulars 31.03.2078 | 31.03.2077
Non-Current
At Amortized Cost - -
At Fair Value Through Profit or Loss - -
At Fair Value Through OCI 273,145,258 273,149,180
Total 273,145,258 273,149,180
Current
At Amortized Cost 10,000,000 90,000,000
At Fair Value Through Profit or Loss - -
At Fair Value Through OCI - -
Total 10,000,000 90,000,000
Investment comprises the following:
At Amortized Cost (A) 31.03.2078 31.03.2077
Term Deposit 10,000,000 90,000,000
Total Investment at Amortized Cost 10,000,000 90,000,000
At Fair Value Through OCI (B)
Investment in Associates
H I Soaltee Management Co. Limited (2,600 shares of HK$ 1) 16,538 16,538
Less: Allowance for Impairment (16,538) (16,538)
Net investment - -
Soaltee Sibkirm Hotels and Resorts Pvt. Ltd. 261,840,000 261,840,000
Sub-total 261,840,000 261,840,000
Investment in other Entities
Himal International Power Corp. Pvt. Ltd.
(100,000 shares of Rs. 100 each) 11,305,258 11,309,180
Sub-total 11,305,258 11,309,180
Total Investment through OCI 273,145,258 273,149,180
Proportion of voting rights
Soaltee Sibkrim Hotels and Resorts Pvt. Ltd. 24% 24%
H I Soaltee Management Co. Limited 26% 26%
Himal International Power Corp. Pvt. Ltd. 6% 6%

The net worth of H I Soaltee Management Co. Ltd. is negative since many years and accordingly, impairment
has been accounted.
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2078 (15 July 2021)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3.6: Trade and Other Receivable

Amount in Rs.

Particulars 31.03.2078 | 32.03.2077
Non-Current
Other Receivable 7,051,419 7,051,419
Deposit for Appeal 4,454,681 2,992,083
Deposits 3,714,814 3,427,464
Loans and Advances to Employees 26,088,551 49,556,592
Deferred Employee Benefit Expenses 2,015,435 2,342,996
Total 43,324,900 65,370,554
Less: Allowance for Impairment (7,051,419) (7,051,419)
Total 36,273,481 58,319,135
Current
Trade Receivable
Trade Receivable 163,320,827 193,654,762
Less: Allowance for Impairment (34,565,887) (29,565,887)
Trade Receivable-Net 128,754,940 164,088,875
Other Receivable
Loans and Advances to Employees 15,749,658 13,715,243
Loans and Advances to Other 24,600,047 6,033,967
Advances to Contractor and Suppliers 1,857,037 7,907,740
VAT Recoverable 32,298,270 10,330,274
Management Fees Recoverable 4,036,281 -
Others 626,537 464,656
Deferred Employee Benefit Expenses 1,658,448 790,981
Total Other Receivable 80,826,278 39,242,861
Total 209,581,218 203,331,736

Additional information on other receivable included in non-current receivable is provided in Note 4.10.1.
Trade receivables are normally collected as per credit terms with the parties, generally within a period of
90 days. Trade receivable is non-interest bearing. Additional information on Trade receivable included in
Current receivable is provided in Note 4.10.2.

Note 3.7: Inventories

Particulars 31.03.2078 31.03.2077
Stores and Spares 10,196,803 9,388,916
Provision, Beverage and Others 16,792,221 22,720,971
Uniform and Linen 32,650,435 17,624,454
Crockery, Cutlery etc. 14,492,046 19,017,905
Total 74,131,505 68,752,246

Note 3.8: Cash and Cash Equivalent

Particulars 31.03.2078 31.03.2077
Cash in Hand 1,396,489 2,201,601
Balances with Bank 48,165,259 227,868,627
Total 49,561,748 230,070,228
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2078 (15 July 2021)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3.9: Share Capital

Amount in Rs.

imited

* *

Particulars

31.03.2078

31.03.2077

Authorized Share Capital

150,000,000 Shares of Rs. 10/- each

1,500,000,000

1,500,000,000

Issued Share Capital

100,000,000 Shares of Rs. 10/- each

1,000,000,000

1,000,000,000

Subscribed and Fully Paid up

84,257,973 Shares of Rs.10/- each 842,579,730 842,579,730
Total 842,579,730 842,579,730
Reconciliation of no. of shares outstanding
Particulars 31.03.2078 31.03.2077
Balance at the beginning of the year 84,257,973 73,267,537
Add: Bonus Issue - 10,990,436
Balance at the end of year 84,257,973 84,257,973
Details of Shareholding
Major Corporate Shareholders 69% 69%
General Shareholders 31% 31%
Note 3.10: Retained Earning and Reserves
Particulars 31.03.2078 31.03.2077
Share Premium 16,000,000 16,000,000
Other Reserve 7,288,761 7,288,761
Revaluation Reserve 35,198,427 35,198,427
Fair Value Reserve for Equity Investment 1,305,258 1,309,181
Retained Earnings 542,663,729 766,691,020
Total 602,456,175 826,487,389

Note 3.11: Non-Controlling Interest

This represents portion of minority shareholders' interest (26.37%) in the financial statements of HI Soaltee

Hotel Company Pvt. Ltd.

Particulars 31.03.2078 31.03.2077
Share Capital 3,563,600 3,563,600
Retained Earnings 4,589,050 4,308,522
Total 8,152,650 7,872,122

Note 3.12: Loans and Borrowings

Particulars 31.03.2078 | 31.03.2077
Non-Current
Secured- Hire Purchase 1,124,779 2,601,024
Total 1,124,779 2,601,024
Current
Overdraft and Working Capital Loan 93,179,658 -
Current portion of Hire Purchase Loan 1,399,846 1,223,356
Total 94,579,504 1,223,356

Note 3.13: Employee Benefits

Particulars 31.03.2078 | 31.03.2077
Non-Current
Gratuity 114,515,139 319,639,442
Less: Plan Assets (6,174,356) (67,265,742)
Net Gratuity Liability 108,340,783 252,373,700
Accumulated Leave 63,966,570 120,361,383
Total 172,307,353 372,735,083
Current
Salary and Wages Payable 9,881,025 21,612,648
Bonus Payable - 13,992,287
Total 9,881,025 35,604,935
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED

As at 31 Ashad 2078 (15 July 2021)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3.14: Income Tax Receivable/(Payable)
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Amount in Rs.

Particulars 31.03.2078 31.03.2077
Advance Income Tax 28,047,374 37,203,022
Income Tax Liability (141,353) (16,418,342)
Total 27,906,021 20,784,680
Note 3.15: Trade and Other Payable
Particulars [ 31.03.2078 | 31.03.2077
Non-Current
Retention and Security Deposit 17,432,234 16,803,661
Unclaimed Dividend 11,376,471 20,795,451
Total 28,808,705 37,599,112
Current
Sundry Creditors | 246,761,387 | 158,833,893
Other Payable
Advances Received 90,632,297 90,632,297
Civil Aviation Fee 484,061 27,242,547
Management Fee - 4,208,002
Flight Kitchen Franchise Fee 1,834,241 393,211
Service Charge 18,495,028 22,264,683
Housing Fund 26,334,029 26,334,029
Corporate Social Responsibility 8,134,351 8,938,372
Other Liabilities 64,612,662 67,922,605
Total 457,288,056 406,769,639
Trade and other payable are non-interest bearing in nature.
Note 3.16: Revenue from Operation
Particulars 2077-78 2076-77
Room 57,427,873 311,347,423
Food 350,303,640 799,069,674
Beverage 10,458,605 35,496,562
Cigar and Cigarettes 40,180 495,025
Telephone 4,837 70,071
Laundry Income 1,977,242 5,346,392
Business Centre - 117,700
Total 420,212,377 | 1,151,942,847
Note 3.17: Other Income
Particulars 2077-78 2076-77
Premises Rental Charge 1,411,117 26,192,299
Interest on Loans & Advances at Amortized Cost 1,474,942 4,619,240
Interest on Call Account/Time Deposit 2,041,118 21,163,720
Miscellaneous Receipts 2,704,113 15,933,794
Income from Service Charge 6,532,211 20,733,269
Profit on Sale of Assets 518,509 584,201
Exchange Gain - 2,840,975
Others 249,271 546,655
Government Grant towards Social Security Fund (SSF) 4,483,750 11,429,057
Reversal of Incentive Management Fee 7,835,582 -
Reversal of Provision for Gratuity - 10,570,091
Reversal of Provision for Leave 7,792,516 -
Total 35,043,129 114,613,301

Additional information on Government Grant towards SSF is provided in Note 4.19.




SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2078 (15 July 2021)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3.18: Consumption of Food and Beverage
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Soalfee Hotel L
* * *

Amount in Rs.

imited

*

*

Particulars 2077-78 2076-77
Food 121,164,519 196,965,468
Beverage 2,705,874 9,121,826
Cigarettes 20,582 152,350
Total 123,890,975 206,239,644
Note 3.19: Employee Benefit Expenses
Particulars 2077-78 2076-77
Salary and Wages 90,066,478 228,549,105
Allowances 27,437,676 84,921,801
Festival Allowance - 24,707,436
Overtime 196,050 9,106,009
Employees Meal 7,657,809 19,184,745
Soaltee Staff Welfare 3,100,862 4,540,067
Gratuity 7,339,553 18,566,486
Leave - 12,561,696
Provident Fund 8,684,671 23,262,207
Clinic Expenses 1,437,148 1,962,965
Amortization of staff loan 206,009 2,150,598
Incentive Exit Scheme 67,857,602 -
Bonus - 13,992,287
Total 213,983,858 443,505,402
Additional information on Gratuity is provided in Note 4.4.a.
Note 3.20: Operating Expenses
Particulars 2077-78 2076-77
Linen 6,195,138 19,906,762
Laundry Supplies 21,801 3,481,665
Crockery & Cutlery 1,203,511 4,647,491
Silverware 4,068,270 5,074,915
Cleaning Supplies 3,339,523 6,392,432
F & B Paper Supplies 6,456,701 7,812,471
Guest Supplies 4,415,274 9,819,281
Water & Water Treatment 6,438,017 7,291,330
Garden Maintenance 7,035 28,050
Pest Control 1,330,745 2,098,800
Waste Removal 304,000 658,500
Power and Fuel 47,796,067 93,595,204
Repair and Maintenance 13,318,504 26,334,287
Total 94,894,586 187,141,188
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2078 (15 July 2021)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3.21: Other Expenses

Amount in Rs.

Particulars 2077-78 2076-77
Rental Charges 2,533,105 1,045,560
Travelling 777,206 5,067,243
Transport and Conveyance 6,292,788 18,460,761
Audit Fee 651,700 651,700
Legal and Professional Fees 5,154,837 6,170,497
Directors' Meeting Fees - 547,057
Licence & Taxes 18,832,228 20,909,155
Bank Charges 1,414,177 6,203,465
Annual General Meeting Expenses 528,665 874,831
Commissions 3,088,619 3,728,824
Insurance 9,148,448 18,901,813
Communication Expenses 3,883,425 4,609,988
Printing and Stationery 2,786,183 3,465,073
Advertisement and Sales Promotion 5,781,445 14,370,366
Marketing and Reservation Expenses 2,419,812 10,983,444
Training and Conference 1,986,300 2,257,586
Books and Newspaper 27,758 237,213
Membership & Subscription 988,770 1,483,483
Security Services 3,470,528 5,376,389
Uniform Expenses 1,470,925 2,320,743
Entertainment 306,302 1,708,278
Allowance for Impairment 5,000,000 5,000,000
Software Service Charges 7,529,464 6,059,644
Banquet Expenses 604,787 12,175,225
Kitchenette Expenses 1,878,942 2,639,804
Exchange Loss 573,735 -
Corporate Social Responsibility - 1,120,421
Miscellaneous 10,187,419 9,894,088
Total 97,317,568 166,262,651

Note 3.22: Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the total profit or loss attributable to equity
shareholders. Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity
shareholders by weighted average number of equity shares for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares. If the number of ordinary or potential ordinary shares outstanding increases as a result of a
capitalization, bonus issue or share split, or decreases as a result of a reverse share split, the calculation

of basic and diluted earnings per share for all periods presented is adjusted retrospectively.

Calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share has been done as stated above.

Particulars 2077-78 2076-77

Basic Earnings per Share

Profit/(Loss) for the year (223,866,653) 113,953,887
Number of shares 84,257,973 84,257,973
Basic Earnings per Share (Rs.) (2.66) 1.35
Diluted Earnings per Share

Profit/(Loss) for the year (223,866,653) 113,953,887
Weighted average number of shares 84,257,973 84,257,973
Diluted Earnings per share (Rs.) (2.66) 1.35
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 31 Ashad 2078 (15 July 2021)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3.23: Financial Instruments Classification and Fair Value Measurement

Financial Instruments are classified in accordance with Note 2.2.3. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair values are determined according to the following hierarchy:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. The Company has used its own data
(accounting value) and considered if there exist factors that would otherwise result in changes to the book
value of assets or liabilities. Such factors did not exist as per management evaluation and accordingly,
book value has been considered as fair value.

Amount in Rs.

As at 31.03.2078 | Carrying Amount | Level 1 | Level 2 | Level 3
Financial Assets
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost
Trade and Other Receivable 242,180,816 242,180,816
Investment 10,000,000 10,000,000
Cash and Cash Equivalent 49,561,748 49,561,748
Total At Amortized Cost 301,742,564 301,742,564
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)
Investment 273,145,258 273,145,258
Total Financial Assets 574,887,822 - 574,887,822
Financial Liabilities
Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost
Trade and Other Payable 486,096,761 486,096,761
Loans and Borrowings 95,704,283 95,704,283
Total Financial Liabilities 581,801,044 - 581,801,044
As at 31.03.2077 | Carrying Amount | Level 1 | Level 2 | Level 3
Financial Assets
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost
Trade and Other Receivable 258,516,894 258,516,894
Investment 90,000,000 90,000,000
Cash and Cash Equivalent 230,070,228 230,070,228
Total At Amortized Cost 578,587,122 578,587,122
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)
Investment 273,149,180 273,149,180
Total Financial Assets 851,736,302 - 851,736,302
Financial Liabilities
Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost
Trade and Other Payable 444 368,751 444 368,751
Loans and Borrowings 3,824,380 3,824,380
Total Financial Liabilities 448,193,131 - 448,193,131
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
For the period ended on 31 Ashad 2078 (15 July 2021)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 Additional Information

4.1 Share Capital
The Group has single class of equity shares where shares of Soaltee Hotel Limited have face value of
Rs. 10 per share and subsidiaries have face value of Rs. 100 per share. Every member holding equity
shares therein shall have voting rights in proportion to the member’s share of the paid up equity share
capital.

4.2 Non-Controlling Interest
Soaltee Hotel Ltd. has made investment in two subsidiaries where holding in one is 100% and on the
other is 73.63%. Upon consolidation of the financial statements, total portion of financial statements is
added by eliminating the portion of other shareholders by way of non-controlling interest.

4.3 Reserves and Retained Earnings

a. Share premium
SHL had issued shares in premium on 1992-93. The amount collected by SHL in excess of its face
value is credited to this account. Use of share premium shall be as provided in Company Act 2063.

b. Other Reserves
SHL had created other reserves out of capital profits on 1995. There is no movement on this reserve
since then.

c. Retained Earning
Net profit for each year is added to this reserve. Group uses this to provide dividend to its
shareholders.

d. Fair Value Reserve
This reserve is created to account for changes in fair value of investments for those investments that
are opted to be measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income.

e. Revaluation Reserve
Revaluation Reserve was created in 1986 when the land of SHL was revalued. For the first time
adoption of NFRS (1 Shrawan 2074), the revalued amount of land has been considered at deemed cost
which as allowed by NFRS 1 and accordingly, this reserve has remain intact.

4.4 Employee Benefits

a. Gratuity
Up to 19 Bhadra 2074, gratuity was in the form of defined benefit liability in which SHL was required
to pay gratuity to staff considering the number of years in service and the recent salary of the staff.
Changes in Labor law has changed the nature of gratuity and this is now a defined contribution plan
whereby SHL is required to provide 8.33% of monthly basic remuneration as gratuity to employee with
effect from 19 Bhadra 2074. SHL has enrolled itself and it's employees in Social Security Fund (SSF) in
Chaitra 2076 and thereafter it has started making contribution towards Employee Gratuity in the

fund.
Particulars 2077-78 2076-77
Opening Liability 319,639,442 329,414,263
Payment Made (203,256,821) (13,011,014)
Expenses Booked 7,339,553 18,566,486
Reversal of Excess Provision - (10,570,091)
Deposited in SSF (7,339,553) -
Government Grant towards SSF for Gratuity (1,867,482) (4,760,202)
Closing Liability 114,515,139 319,639,442

Leave

Leave is classified as other long term employee liability. Liability is measured by way of actuarial
valuation for accumulated leave balance at the end of reporting periods. Changes in value of liability is

as follows:
Particulars 2077-78 2076-77
Opening Liability 120,361,383 122,289,649
Service Cost 20,230,280 3,472,909
Interest Cost 6,243,913 7,656,926
Actuarial Gain/(Loss) (34,266,709 (6,641,410)
Benefit Paid (48,602,297) (6,416,691)
Closing Liability (A) 63,966,570 120,361,383
Liability recognized in the financial statements (B) 63,966,570 120,361,383




Basic assumptions considered for measurement of leave liability related to leave are as follows:

Particulars 2077-78 2076-77
Discount Rate 6.50% 6.43%
Rate of Compensation Increase 6% 6%
Average Expected Future Service 14 13.5
Average Duration of Liabilities 12.5 16.5

Plan assets have not been created for funding of payment of leave liability.

Sensitivity Analysis

The following table demonstrates the impact of 1% increase in discount rate considered for calculating

the present value of long term leave liability.

Particulars 2077-78 2076-77
Effect on:
- Service Cost (2,465,544) (210,828)
- Interest Cost 960,600 1,190,810
- Leave Liability (13,610,076) (11,435,257

The following table demonstrates the impact of 1% decrease in discount rate considered for calculating

the present value of long term leave liability.

Particulars 2077-78 2076-77
Effect on:
- Service Cost 2,957,603 254,876
- Interest Cost (960,600) (1,191,440)
- Leave Liability 8,907,455 13,503,921
4.5 Lease
SHL has entered into a lease arrangement of premises for a period of 2-3 years. The future minimum
lease rental payment to be made is as follows:
Period 2077-78 2076-77
Up to one year 7,265,833 1,050,000
One to five years 12,343,552 1,102,500
Above five years - -
Total 19,609,385 2,152,500
SHL has entered into operating lease arrangement allowing to use some part of its assets on lease.
Minimum lease amount receivable under such lease is as follows:
Period 2077-78 2076-77
Up to one year 36,007,149 33,509,181
One to five years 228,502,545 190,894,061
Above five years 310,150,800 351,517,808
Total 574,660,494 | 575,921,050
The Board of Directors of SHL has decided to grant waiver for the lease payments of lessees whose
business was significantly and adversely affected by COVID-19 outbreak and subsequent government-
imposed lockdown.
4.6 Corporate Social Responsibility
During the year, SHL has provided Rs. NIL (previous year Rs. 1.12 million (1% of net profit after tax) as
Corporate Social Responsibility as per the Section 54 (1) of the Industrial Enterprises Act 2076.
4.7 Risk Management objectives and policies

imited
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The Group’s business activities expose to a variety of risks, namely primarily to fluctuations in foreign
currency exchange rates, liquidity and credit risk, which may adversely impact the fair value of its
financial instruments. The Board of each Group and senior management has overall responsibility for
the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk management. The Group's risk management
policies are established to identify and analyses the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk
limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and
systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities.
i. Market Risk
In spite of having a very high potentiality of Tourism Sector and its related to services, it is volatile
to geopolitical and domestic incidents. With stabilization in the geopolitical and domestic issues,
the tourism sector looks for bright future. However, there is risk that any domestic/international
or geopolitical incidents would impact the business of the company. However, the group through
years of operations has sustained through such risks over the years in the past.

ii. Credit Risk
The Group (SHL, in particular) provides reasonable level of credit facilities to debtors and so does it

goR
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enjoy credit facility from it creditors as well. In impact on tourism sector may have impact of
company debtors' ability to pay SHL within reasonable credit period allowed. Accordingly, there
exist the credit risks to that extent. The Group through its experience over the many years has
been managing such risk well through proper way of close monitoring and supervising the regular
recoverability position by the management and the Board.

iii. Liquidity Risk
The Group has very less amount of debt funding and will not be impacted significantly. Group
monitors its liquidity position on regular basis through effective planning and forecasting.
The Group’s current assets aggregate positively against the current liabilities and accordingly, the

liquidity risk or risk that the company may not be able to settle its liabilities as they become, due
does not exist.

iv. Operational Risk

Group has been in operation since more than 50 years and have prepared and implemented
various Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) in the form of clear cut delegation of authority for
the activities, guidelines regulations etc. Beside the companies of Group is required to also follow
specific operating guidelines issued by its franchise. Group believes that the controls implemented
by the company have minimized the operational risk to acceptably low level. The franchise also
carries out Control Self-Assessment at reasonable interval where the SHL scored high level marks
placing it as one among better managed hotel among hotels being managed by Franchise.

v. Exchange Rate Fluctuation Risk

SHL's revenue will be impacted coming from any fluctuation of exchange rate fluctuation so be on
the certain level of supplies of the company as such exchange rate fluctuation will contribute
certain level of inflations. Since its tariffs are quoted in USD, any rate fluctuation will have the risk
of impacting the income of the company. It has been the tendency that the exchange rate
fluctuation has generally been upward movement except of occasional down turn movement as
well. The Group has practiced not to hold foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities for
substantial period so as to minimize the risk of exchange rate fluctuation.

4.8 Related Party Transactions

Related parties of the Group comprises of key management personnel, organization having significant
influence and Board of Directors.

a. Significant Influence
Entities having significant influence over the Group is as follows:

i. Soaltee Enterprise Pvt. Ltd. (SEPL)
Soaltee Enterprise Pvt. Ltd. is major shareholder of SHL. SEPL has four representatives in the
current Board of Soaltee Hotel Ltd. (SHL). SEPL has paid Rs. 66,667 (previous year Rs. 66,667) to
SHL as operating lease rent. There is no outstanding balance at the year end.

Entity where the Group has significant influence is:

i. Soaltee Sibkrim Hotels and Resorts Pvt. Ltd.
Soaltee Sibkrim Hotels and Resorts Pvt. Ltd. is associate of the Group. One of the subsidiary of
SHL, Soaltee Hospitality Ltd. has 24% shares in this company with investment of Rs. 261.84
million. There is no transaction or outstanding balance of this company with the Group.

b. Other related entities
i. Nepal Airlines Corporation (NAC)
Nepal Airlines Corporation is institutional shareholder of SHL. NAC has one representative in the
Board of SHL.

SHL provides flight catering services to the international flights of Nepal Airlines Corporation.
Transactions and outstanding balance with Nepal Airlines Corporation are as follows:

Particulars Revenue (in million) Receivable (in million)
This Year Last Year This Year Last Year
Flight Catering Services 141.96 211.79 31.21 52.77

ii. Sibkrim Holdings Pvt. Ltd.
There is no transaction of this company with SHL.

c. Those charged with Governance
Those charged with governance include the Board of Directors of each companies. As SHL is the major
shareholder of all subsidiaries, the Board of those companies is ultimately controlled by Board of SHL.
The composition of Board of SHL on the reporting date is as follows:

Name Position Representative of
Mr. Dinesh Bahadur Bista Executive Chairman Soaltee Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.
Mr. Ravi Bhakta Shrestha Director Soaltee Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.
Mr. Rajesh Kazi Shrestha Director Soaltee Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.
Mrs. Jaya Rajya Laxmi Shah Director Soaltee Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.
Mr. Ganesh Bahadur Chand Director Nepal Airlines Corporation
Mr. Prakash Bikram Khatri Director Public Shareholder
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Mr. Sashi Raj Pandey Director Public Shareholder
Mr. Niranjan Kumar Tibrewala Director Public Shareholder

Mr. Lil Bahadur Khatri serves as Company Secretary of the Company.

Board members are paid Rs. 15,000 (net of withholding tax) per meeting as meeting fee for attending
each meeting of Board. Meeting fee paid to members of Board for Board as well as Other Committee
meetings during the year amounts to Rs. NIL (previous year Rs. 0.55 million).

d. Key Management Personnel
The Groups' key management personnel include are Executive Chairman & Vice President of SHL and
General Manager of The Soaltee Kathmandu.
Total compensation to key management personnel during the year is Rs. 12.59 million (previous year
Rs. 29.68 million). The compensation paid to Executive Chairman of SHL also includes the
performance incentive paid based on the profit of Hotel.

4.9 Unpaid Dividend
Total unpaid dividend of SHL amounted to Rs. 11.38 million (previous year Rs. 20.79 million).

4.10 Trade and Other Receivable

4.10.1 Civil Aviation Fee recoverable from Airlines
Civil Aviation Fees levied on Inflight catering services provided on international flights by SHL to three
different airlines have been disputed and not paid by the respective airlines which amounted to Rs
7.051 million (previous year Rs. 7.051 million) is still pending recovery. This has been reflected under
Non-current Trade and other receivables.

4.10.2 Trade Receivable from Jet Airways
Trade receivable amounting to Rs. 16,061,418 is pending recoverable from Jet Airways as of the
reporting date which has closed its operation from 17 April 2019 and is undergoing its insolvency
proceedings. In October 2020, a revival takeover plan of potential investors has been approved by the
Committee of Creditors of Airlines. The company has already lodged the outstanding with Jet Airways
& confirmed by Jet Airways in their official website as eligible creditors. However, the outcome of the
proceeding and business revival is yet to be known.

4.11 Lien on company's assets
Current and non-current assets of SHL, where applicable has been pledged hypothecated to bankers
providing the credit facilities. The credit facility as of the reporting date included term loan against a
vehicle only amounting to Rs. 94.57 million (previous year Rs. 3.82 million).

4.12 Contingent Liability
Group recognizes contingent liability when a possible obligation arises from past events and whose
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the entity or company as a present obligation as a result of past
events which is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured with sufficient reliability. All adjusting events are considered for appropriate reflection in the
current financial year.

4.13 Bank Guarantee

Unexpired bank guarantee issued by Group amounted to Rs. 8.45 million (previous year Rs. 2.90
million)

4.14 Litigations or legal cases
i. Income tax Matters
Revenue Tribunal has decided in SHL's favour against the appeal made relating to assessment
pertaining to FY 2068-69. However, Revenue Office has filed appeal in the Honourable Supreme
Court. Decision of such appeal is still pending. SHL is of the opinion that there would not be
significant obligation relating such appeal being considered at the Court.

ii. Assessment status
SHL has appealed to Revenue Tribunal challenging the disallowance of expenses on Self-
Assessment Income Tax Return of the FY 2071-72 and additional demand of tax Rs. 1,837,680
made by Large Taxpayers Office. The management considers no significant obligation that would
arise that would be required to be provided for. Any tax claim will be directly charged to
accumulated profit as per its practice.

SHL has appealed to Inland Revenue Department challenging the disallowance of expenses on
Self-Assessment Income Tax Return of the FY 2072-73 and additional demand of tax Rs.
2,413,333 made by Large Taxpayers Office for administrative review. The management considers
no significant obligation that would arise that would be required to be provided for. Any tax claim
will be directly charged to accumulated profit as per its practice.

SHL has appealed to Inland Revenue Department challenging the disallowance of expenses on
Self-Assessment Income Tax Return of the FY 2073-74 and additional demand of tax Rs. 134,155
made by Large Taxpayers Office for administrative review. The management considers no
significant obligation that would arise that would be required to be provided for. Any tax claim will
be directly charged to accumulated profit as per its practice.
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iii. Casino Royalty
Pursuant to the litigation case filed by SHL against Government of Nepal for its demand of Casino
Royalty for the financial year 2005/06 (2062/63) till November 2012 (24 Kartik 2069) from SHL
instead of the then Lessee, Nepal Recreation Centre Pvt. Ltd, the verdict was issued in favour of
SHL from Honourable Supreme Court of Nepal. Accordingly, the management considers that no
further obligation arises under such demand by the GON for such Royalty and no provision for the
additional claim has been made.

iv: Arbitration
SHL has filed a writ petition in the Supreme Court of Nepal challenging the judgment of
Honourable High Court, Patan for the appointment of arbitrator in a case filed by the Nepal
Recreation Centre Pvt Ltd. for the appointment of arbitrators pursuant to the Casino Lease
Agreement. The matter is sub-judice before the Honourable Supreme Court. Another case is
pending in the Honourable High Court, Patan in pursuant to appointment of Arbitrator.

v. Legal cases
SHL has filed a few cases for recovery of dues from some debtors in the course of its regular

business.
4.15 Capital Commitment

Capital contract of SHL remaining to be executed on capital accounts net of advances to Rs. 18.07

million (Previous year Rs. 2.62 million).

4.16 Letter of Credit
There is no outstanding letter of credit as at the reporting date.
4.17 Housing Fund

This fund was created as per the requirement of erstwhile Labour laws. Owing to changes in Labour

law, this fund is no longer required and no provision has been made. SHL has not paid during the year

out of this fund to a separate entity called Employee Housing.
4.18 Operating Segment

Management of the companies of the Group has considered the total operation to be segregable into

three operating segment based on the nature of operation and services rendered.

i. Core hotel business: The operation of hotel that includes sale of rooms, food, related recreational
facilities etc. that is directly linked to operation of hotel is considered as major segment.

ii. Flight catering: The Flight Catering Division provides flight catering services to airlines. This is
different nature to the core operating nature of the company, which is operation of hotel and
related facilities to meet its standards.

iii. Horizon Lounge: Horizon Lounge Unit provides airport lounge services to the travelers at
Tribhuwan International Airport (TIA).

The financial information about the identified segments are as follows: (Amount in millions)

q Hotel Flight Horizon

(T DT Operation Categring Lounge e
Revenue

- Food 88.08 260.13 2.09 350.30

- Room 57.43 57.43

- Beverage 9.04 0.80 0.62 10.46

- Others 2.02 0.02 2.04
Interest Income 3.52 3.52
Other Income 31.53 31.53
Total Revenue 191.61 260.93 2.73 455.26
Consumption cost 35.22 88.23 0.44 123.89
Employee Benefit Expenses 168.01 45.19 0.78 213.98
Management, Operating and Other Expenses 99.94 92.06 2.67 194.67
Depreciation and Amortization 89.39 4.40 0.20 94.00
Finance Cost 2.87 2.87
Total Expenses* 395.44 229.88 4.09 629.41
Segment Result (203.83) 31.05 (1.36) (174.15)
Income Tax 49.71
Profit/(Loss) for the period (223.87)
Segment Assets 2,073.64 121.72 21.82 | 2,217.18
Segment Liabilities** 2,217.18
*  Directly associated and identifiable segment cost has been reported on actual basis while

common segment costs are allocated based on ratio of segment revenue.
**  Segment wise liabilities have not been prepared due to absence internal reporting system of
segment liability.
4.19 Government Grant towards Social Security Fund (SSF)

The Government of Nepal (GoN) announced that it would contribute 31% of the basic salary to Social
Security Fund (SSF) on behalf of the registered contributors (20% employer’s contribution and 11%



4.20

4.21

4.22

employees) as a relief to employers and employees impacted during the countrywide lockdown period
due to COVID-19. SHL started contributing to SSF after its enrolment in Chaitra 2076 and qualifies for
the Grant related to Income. Accordingly, SHL has recognized such contributions of Rs. 4.84 million in
employee’s SSF for the month Jestha and Ashad 2078 as Government grant and recognized the
corresponding amount as employee cost in the financial statements.

Capital Management

Capital includes issued capital and all other reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Group.
The Companies of the Group manage their capital so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern and to optimize returns to the shareholders. The capital structure of the Group is based on
management’s judgment of the appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its strategic
needs. We consider the amount of capital in proportion to risk and manage the capital structure in
light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.

The Group’s aim is to translate profitable growth to superior cash generation through efficient capital
management. The Group's policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on
total equity so as to maintain investor, creditor, and market confidence and to sustain future
development and growth of its business. The Group's focus is on keeping strong total equity base to
ensure independence, security, as well as a high financial flexibility for potential future borrowings, if
required, without impacting the risk profile of the Group. The Group will take appropriate steps in
order to maintain, or if necessary adjust, its capital structure. The management monitors the return
on capital as well as the level of dividends to shareholders. The Group’s goal is to continue to be able
to return excess liquidity to shareholders by continuing to distribute dividends in future periods.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during all the years
reported in this financial statement.

Going Concern

Impact of COVID-19

The Group faces significant uncertainties due to COVID-19 which have impacted the operations of the
Group adversely starting from the start of the fiscal year. Management has assessed the impact of
existing and anticipated effects of COVID-19 on the future cash flow projections and has prepared a
range of scenarios to estimate possible financing requirements. Nonetheless, management is confident
of its ability to generate cash inflows from operations and also raise long term funds to meet its
obligations on due date.

Also refer note 2.1.3 (e) Estimation uncertainty relating to the global health pandemic on COVID-19.
Based on aforesaid assessment, management believes that as per estimates made conservatively, the
Group will continue as a going concern and will be able to discharge its liabilities and realise the
carrying amount of its assets as on 15 July 2021.

Regrouping and Round off

Figures have been regrouped and rearranged and rounded off to nearest rupee. Insignificant rounding
off differences may exist.

o
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